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COMPANY
PROFILE

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited (the
“Company”), together with its subsidiaries (collectively
refer to as the “Group”or “We”), is one of the largest private
provider of higher education in China. As at 31 December
2016, the Group had enrollment of 32,635 students in
aggregate and employed 1,160 teachers in aggregate.

As at 13 April 2017, being the latest practicable date for
ascertaining certain information in this annual report (the
“Latest Practicable Date”), the Group operated four schools
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), namely
Chongging College of Humanities, Science and Technology,
Pass College of Chongging Technology and Business
University, Chongqging Vocational College of Applied
Technology and Inner Mongolia Fengzhou Vocational
College (Qingcheng Branch), three of which are located
in Chongging and the other school is situated in Inner
Mongolia. In addition, the fifth school of the Group, Laoling
Minsheng Secondary Vocational School, was established
on 20 September 2016 and is expected to enroll its first
batch of students in September 2018. Through these
schools, the Group primarily offer formal higher education,
including formal undergraduate education and junior college
education.

Through over 10 years of operation in the field of formal
higher education, we believe that we have established a
strong reputation in the relevant parts of China, which helps
us attract high-quality students and teachers and pave the
way for our success. We intend to maintain and strengthen
our market position in the formal higher education industry in
China.
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CORPORATE

INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman of the Board)
Ms. Zhang Weiping

Mr. Zuo Yichen

Mr. Lam Ngai Lung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
Mr. Yu Huangcheng
Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew
AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (Chairman)
Mr. Yu Huangcheng
Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Li Xuechun
Mr. Yu Huangcheng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman)
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Mr. Yu Huangcheng
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LEGAL ADVISOR
As to Hong Kong law:

Luk & Partners

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

TC Capital International Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTER AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

PRC

Room 301, Full Tower

No. 9 Dongsanhuan Zhonglu
Chaoyang District

Beijing, PRC
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1102, 11/F., The Lee Gardens One
33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

CAYMAN ISLANDS SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKER

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Chongging Heyang Branch

STOCK CODE
1569

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.minshengedu.com
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FINANCIAL
HIGHLIGHTS

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last four financial years is set

out below:

UBRE

AEERBENEMBFENKEEZEE
REERBEOBZEHIIAT

Year ended 31 December
BZ12B31BILEE

2014 2015 2016

2013

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 BI[=KilL]

ARETT ARBTI ARETrT BPNELAET

Revenue g 384,085 402,515 426,317 444,997

Cost of revenue I ER A AN (142,886)  (146,811)  (164,653)  (186,391)

Gross profit EF 241,199 255,704 261,664 258,606

Profit before tax B B A ) 204,029 222,266 246,679 251,358

Profit for the year FEiE A 185,947 196,327 213,457 249,749

As at 31 December
R12A31H

2013 2014 2015 2016

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 BI[=KilL)

ARETT ARBTI ARETrT BPNELAET

Non-current assets ERBEE 931,215 943,523 970,711 1,067,152

Current assets RBEE 1,128,762 1,357,314 1,038,757 1,156,718

Current liabilities TENAE 309,271 320,349 354,157 520,943

Net current assets MEEEFE 819,491 1,036,965 684,600 635,775
Total assets less BEEBRRDERE

current liabilities 1,750,706 1,980,488 1,655,311 1,702,927

Non-current liabilities ERBEE 31,723 62,775 236,370 132,015

Net assets BEFE 1,718,983 1,917,713 1,418,941 1,570,912

Total equity B 1,718,983 1,917,713 1,418,941 1,570,912

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited REHBEFFRA A



CHAIRMAN'S
STATEMENT

year ended 31
December
2016.

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Minsheng
Education Group Company Limited (the “Company”, together
with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the “Group”
or “We”), | am pleased to present the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 22 March 2017 (the “Listing”). On behalf
of the Board, | would like to thank the professional parties
involved and our staffs for the successful Listing. The Listing
has strengthened our financial position and also raised

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board
of Directors (the “Board”) of
Minsheng Education Group Company

Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, collectively refer to as the
“Group” or “We"), | am pleased to
present the annual results
of the Group for the
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ITRRE (K)

additional capital for our future development. Besides, it
provided a good opportunity to strengthen our internal control
function and further promote our Group as a trustworthy and
well-organised establishment to the general public.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The year 2016 was a challenging year for the Group and
the management team who are dedicated to creating
value for the Shareholders of the Company. The private
higher education industry in China has experienced
rapid growth and challenges have originated from the
increase in competition in the domestic market. However,
the management team are committed to cope with such
challenges in which our efforts were well rewarded. Our
total student enrollment increased from 30,616 as at 31
December 2015 to 32,635 as at 31 December 2016. Our
revenue has increased from approximately RMB426.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB445.0 million for the year and profit for the year
increased from approximately RMB213.5 million for year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB249.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PROSPECTS

Going forward, we intend to further expand our school
network coverage. We aim to achieve such goal by carefully
selecting suitable acquisition targets and/or establishing new
schools, including by cooperation with other school sponsors
to establish new schools. Meanwhile, we intend to expand
the scale of our business operations in the existing schools
and diversify our revenue primarily through optimizing major
offerings, offering undergraduate studies to graduates
of junior college programs and offering postgraduate
programs, including master’'s degrees, upon the approvals
from the relevant government authorities. We aim to continue
to improve our school-enterprise collaboration business
model. As we believe we have established a strong
reputation for providing quality education to our students,
we believe we are in a position to optimize our pricing
without compromising our reputation and our ability to attract
and retain talented students. Furthermore, to improve our
competitiveness, we intend to further advance our brand,
reputation and school network internationally and continue to
improve the overall quality of our teaching staff as a means
to improve the quality of our education services.

PI7s 2R R A - DA DNSR T PIRY P BR ES 4R B B
FE-—FRARELAEERBER 5 -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to take this
opportunity to thank our management and the entire staffs of
the Group for their loyalty and dedication. | would also like
to thank our Shareholders and business partners for their
trust and confidence in the Board and management of the
Group. With the concerted efforts of all staffs, | believe the
business of the Group will continue to thrive and generate
greater return for our Shareholders.

Li Xuechun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 April 2017
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MANAGEMENT

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The Group is one of the largest private provider of higher
education in China, as measured by total number of student
enrollment. As at 31 December 2016, the Group had an
aggregate of 32,635 students enrolled at the schools
we owned and operated, namely, Chongqging College of
Humanities, Science and Technology, Pass College of
Chongqging Technology and Business University, Chongging
Vocational College of Applied Technology and Inner
Mongolia Fengzhou Vocational College (Qingcheng Branch).

Our primary focus is to provide high-quality private
formal higher education in China dedicated to nurturing
professional talent. We offer a comprehensive range
of diverse majors and courses, including through our
collaborative relationships and cooperative education
programs with local businesses and government agencies,
through which we strive to improve our students’ practical
training and career prospects. As a result, we have
achieved high initial graduate employment rates for the
schools we owned and operated. We attribute the relatively
high initial graduate employment rates we have achieved
to the effectiveness of our education, which we believe will
continue to elevate our brand recognition and help us attract
talented students.

BB EYm R DI

ES 0]
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,g °
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MRAEE - HPIRR - RAIBGENEY
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERESHRDIT (&)

Our Schools

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Group operated four
schools in the PRC, three of which are located in Chongqging
and the other school is situated in Inner Mongolia. Through
these schools, we primarily offer formal higher education,
including formal undergraduate education and junior college
education. Typically, we charge our students tuition fees and
boarding fees and we generally raise tuition fees involving
certain majors at the schools we own and operate every
two to three school years to reflect our increased operating
costs. Students who have already enrolled at our schools
continue to pay the tuition fees in effect when they first
enrolled in our schools.

The fifth school of the Group, Laoling Minsheng Secondary
Vocational School, was established on 20 September
2016 and is expected to enroll its first batch of students in
September 2018.

In addition, as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company
dated 10 March 2017, pursuant to certain cooperation
agreements entered into between the Group, the People’s
Government of Laoling and Bureau of Education of Laoling,

HIBER
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‘ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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EERESY R R DT ()

Laoling Secondary Vocational and Technical School will be
managed and operated by Laoling Minsheng Secondary
Vocational School under an entrustment management
arrangement. We have completed the filing of the said
entrustment management arrangement with the People’s
Government of Dezhou in April 2017.

Our Investments in Overseas Schools

In order to introduce advanced curriculums and innovative
teaching methods into our schools in the PRC to bolster
our education quality and reputation, and to create more
exchange opportunities for our students in the PRC, we have
invested in Beacon International College PTE. LTD. (“Beacon
International College”) in Singapore and Hong Kong Nang
Yan College of Higher Education Limited (“Hong Kong Nang
Yan College of Higher Education”) in Hong Kong.

BT EREETREPEERER -
BMER2017F 4 A@EMNARBFTK
B LM REEELRFRES

BIRENERGKE

RTEEMNTENERS|ALENRE
REFOHEBEFTENRSRMOHKEES
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ZRMHE - RMERE R INE
Beacon International College PTE. LTD.
([EHRBERER ) MR BEENTERLC
HIERARAB(EEERICELSR]) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, we directly owned approximately
25.6% equity interest in Beacon International College and
were one of the two members of Hong Kong Nang Yan
College of Higher Education, which is a company limited by
guarantee established under the laws of Hong Kong.

Outlook

In our efforts to achieve business growth, we plan to further
expand our school network through acquiring existing
schools and/or establishing new schools, including by
cooperating with other school sponsors to establish new
schools.

The Group will continue to identify suitable investments,
acquisitions and project opportunities in order to enhance
the value of the Company and create higher returns for
Shareholders.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Revenue represents the value of services rendered during
the reporting period. The Group derives revenue primarily
from tuition fees and boarding fees our schools collect from
students.

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately
4.4% from approximately RMB426.3 million in 2015 to
approximately RMB445.0 million in 2016. This increase
was primarily due to an increase of tuition fees from
approximately RMB395.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB412.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, primarily because (i) the
total student enrollment increased as at 31 December 2016
compared to 31 December 2015; (ii) the Group increased
tuition fees by RMB1,000 for most of the majors offered at
Chongging College of Humanities, Science and Technology
and by RMB1,000 for certain majors offered at Pass College
of Chongging Technology and Business University for the
2016/2017 school year; and (iii) in 2016, the Group granted
direct subsistence allowance in cash of approximately
RMB6.3 million to our students, which was treated as a
deduction from the gross revenue.

EERESHRDIT (&)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERESY R R DT ()

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists primarily of staff costs, depreciation
and amortization, cost of cooperative education, utilities,
cost of repairs, office expenses, student study and practice
fees and other costs.

The cost of sales increased by approximately 13.2% from
approximately RMB164.7 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB186.4 million in 2016. This increase was primarily due
to an increase in staff costs, office expenses and rental
fees. Staff costs increased by approximately 16.7% from
approximately RMB85.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB100.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2016, mainly due to (i) an
increase in staff salaries and benefits at Chongqing College
of Humanities, Science and Technology and Pass College of
Chongging Technology and Business University to make the
compensation package of our teachers more competitive;
and (ii) an increase in the number of teachers employed at
all of the schools we own and operate in response to the
increase in student enrollment. Office expenses increased
by approximately 29.5% from approximately RMB6.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB7.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2016,
mainly as a result of our offering of research funds to
our teaching staffs at Chongging College of Humanities,
Science and Technology who obtained certain notable
teaching and research achievements, such as publishing
papers in academic journals. Rental expenses increased by
approximately 84.8% from approximately RMB1.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB3.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, mainly due
to increased rental payments we made to the landlord with
respect to an agreement entered into by Inner Mongolia
Fengzhou Vocational College (Qingcheng Branch) in 2015.

HERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Gross Profit

The gross profit decreased by approximately 1.2% from
approximately RMB261.7 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB258.6 million in 2016, and gross profit margin
decreased from approximately 61.4% for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately 58.1% for the year ended
31 December 2016, due primarily to a large increase in
cost of sales resulting, in particular, from increased staff
costs, office expenses and rental expenses compared to the
increase in revenue.

Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains consists primarily of government
grants, net exchange gain, investment income from
available-for-sale investments and investment deposits,
other interest income and net rental income.

Other income and gains increased by approximately 71.7%
from approximately RMB56.9 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB97.8 million in 2016. This increase was primarily due to
(i) increased grants by the local government in Chongging to
our three schools in 2016, which was due to our increased
use of subsidies for daily expenses, resulting in the transfer
of government subsidies from deferred income to the
consolidated income statement; and (ii) a large net foreign
currency exchange gain we had in 2016 compared to 2015,
mainly because (A) our overseas subsidiary borrowed
funds from our PRC subsidiaries in the second half of 2015
to repurchase issued ordinary shares from our previous
investors, which continued in 2016 and resulted in large
amounts of U.S. dollar-denominated funds, and (B) U.S.
dollar continued to appreciate against the Renminbi during
2016, partially offset by (i) a decrease in investment income
from available-for-sale investments and investment deposits
as we redeemed certain amounts in connection with the
repurchase of our issued ordinary shares from our previous
investors; (ii) a decrease in other interest income as a result
of the deposit interest rate cut in October 2015; and (iii) a
decrease in net rental income in 2016 because the lease for
properties rented by an Independent Third Party expired and
a new lease has not yet been entered into, which resulted in
reduced rental income.

EERESHRDIT (&)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERESY R R DT ()

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist primarily of
salaries and other benefits for our staff who are in charge of
student recruitment and advertising, advertising expenses
and student recruitment expenses.

Selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately 40.9% from approximately RMB8.3 million in
2015 to approximately RMB11.7 million in 2016, primarily
because we increased our promotional efforts to attract more
student enrollment at our schools for the 2016/2017 school
year.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of the salaries and
other benefits for general and administrative staff, office-
related expenses, depreciation of office buildings and
equipment, environment and health expenses, travel and
transportation expenses and rental expenses.

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 39.9%
from approximately RMB61.7 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB86.3 million in 2016, due primarily to (i) an increase in
staff costs for our administrative staff at Chongging College
of Humanities, Science and Technology and Pass College
of Chongging Technology and Business University in 2016;
and (ii) a substantial increase in listing expenses, auditor’s
fees and legal and consulting services fees incurred in
connection with the Global Offering in 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Other Expenses, Net

Other expenses consist primarily of expenses relating
to donations, which represent cash donations some of
our schools made to third-party educational and other
institutions and disposal of fixed assets.

Other expenses, net increased substantially from
approximately RMBO0.7 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB3.7 million in 2016. This increase was primarily
attributable to (i) an increase of loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment in 2016 compared to 2015
as a result of Chongqging College of Humanities, Science
and Technology’s disposal of its old front gate and some
of the fixed assets in 2016; (ii) a voluntary donation from
Chongging College of Humanities, Science and Technology
in support of Chongging’s public welfare initiative; and (iii)
the compensation we provided to a tenant of a property
owned by Chongqging College of Humanities, Science and
Technology as the school needed to recover the property
from the tenant for the construction of a campus hospital
within the school.

Finance Costs

Finance costs mainly represent interest on loans we
borrowed from the ultimate holding company and certain of
our related parties. Finance costs increased substantially
from approximately RMBO0.3 million in 2015 to approximately
RMB2.6 million in 2016, mainly due to the increased interest
we paid for the loans we borrowed from (i) the ultimate
holding company in the third and fourth quarters of 2015
to repurchase some of our issued ordinary shares from our
previous investors; and (ii) certain of our related parties in
the first quarter of 2016, which were subsequently extended
to Hong Kong Nang Yan College of Higher Education.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERESY R R DT ()

Share of Loss of an Associate

Share of loss of an associate represents the loss we incurred
in connection with our investment in Beacon International
College, in which we maintained a 25.6% equity interest
as at 31 December 2016. Share of loss of an associate
decreased by approximately 28.1% from approximately
RMBO0.9 million in 2015 to approximately RMBO.7 million
in 2016. This decrease was primarily due to improved
operating results at Beacon International College in 2016.

Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expense we incurred for the year ended
31 December 2016 was approximately RMB1.6 million,
compared to an income tax expense of approximately
RMB33.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.
The income tax expense in 2015 was primarily due to a
distribution of dividend by Chongging College of Humanities,
Science and Technology to its school sponsor, Chongging
Li'ang Industry Co., Ltd.* (EEFSEEAERAF) (‘Li'ang
Industry”), in 2015, which resulted in Li’ang Industry having
to pay the relevant PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") in
2015.

*

English names are translated for identication purpose only.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

FINANCIAL AND LIQUIDITY POSITION
Net Current Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB635.8 million, which primarily consisted
of available-for-sale investments, investment deposits
and cash and bank balances. The current assets as at 31
December 2016 increased to approximately RMB1,156.7
million from approximately RMB1,038.8 million as at 31
December 2015. The increase in current assets primarily
reflected (i) an increase in cash and bank balances, which
increased from approximately RMB352.2 million as at 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB602.3 million as at
31 December 2016; and (ii) an increase of approximately
RMB241.4 million in investment deposits from approximately
RMB121.2 million as at 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB362.6 million as at 31 December 2016 as we made
additional investments in investment deposits as part of our
liquidity management measures, and was partially offset by a
decrease in available-for-sale investments, which decreased
from approximately RMB522.1 million as at 31 December
2015 to approximately RMB143.2 million as at 31 December
2016, as we redeemed a certain amount of available-for-
sale investments and deposited the funds at commercial
banks as our cash and bank balances. The current liabilities
increased from approximately RMB354.2 million as at 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB520.9 million as at
31 December 2016, mainly reflecting (i) an increase of
approximately RMB125.4 million of loans we borrowed from
the ultimate holding company in 2016 to repurchase some
of our issued ordinary shares from our previous investors,
which were reclassified as current liabilities from non-
current liabilities and the loans have been fully repaid on
7 March 2017; (ii) an increase of approximately RMB25.3
million in other payable and accruals and (iii) an increase
of approximately RMB16.7 million in deferred revenue as
our total student enroliment increased for the 2016/2017
school year compared to the 2015/2016 school year and
we raised tuition fees for most of the majors offered at
Chongging College of Humanities, Science and Technology
and for certain majors offered at Pass College of Chongqging
Technology and Business University for the 2016/2017
school year.
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‘ MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

20

EERESY R R DT ()

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures primarily relate to maintaining and
upgrading the existing school premises and purchasing
additional educational facilities and equipment for our
schools. Capital expenditures consist of the additions of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments.

Capital expenditures increased from approximately RMB68.2
million in 2015 to approximately RMB122.4 million in 2016,
due primarily to prepaid land lease payments we made
in connection with the parcel of land Pass College of
Chongqging Technology and Business University acquired in
August 2016.

Capital Commitments

Capital commitments primarily relate to the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and loan commitments to
an associate. The following table sets forth a summary of
capital commitments at the end of the reporting period:

=N 53
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARETT

Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B AREME

Equipment B 6,121 5,129
Buildings BF 7,248 111
Loan committed to an associate mEEE N R B FURE 26,877 —
Total 1EEE 40,246 5,240

Capital commitments increased from approximately RMB5.2
million in 2015 to approximately RMB40.2 million in 2016.
This increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in the
amount of loan we have committed to provide to Hong
Kong Nang Yan College of Higher Education; and (ii) an
increase in the amount we have committed to the renovation
construction projects involving certain of our school
buildings.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Operating Lease Commitments

The Group leases certain buildings under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for buildings are generally negotiated
for an initial term of one year with an option for renewal after
the initial expiration date, at which time all terms will be
renegotiated. The table below sets forth our future minimum
lease payments payable under non-cancellable operating
leases at the end of the reporting periods:
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Year ended 31 December
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The operating lease commitments increased from
approximately RMBO0.2 million in 2015 to approximately
RMBO0.5 million in 2016, primarily attributable to the rental
payment commitments relating to the lease entered into by
Inner Mongolia Fengzhou Vocational College (Qingcheng
Branch).

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
outstanding bank loans, nor any unutilized banking facilities.
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately
RMB125.4 million outstanding amount due to the ultimate
holding company. These loans were unsecured and were
repayable in March and June 2017. This amount was
borrowed from the ultimate holding company in connection
with the repurchase of issued ordinary shares from previous
investors beginning in the second half of 2015. In addition,
as at 31 December 2016, the Group had approximately
RMB14.1 million outstanding amount due to related parties,
which was mainly used as loans to Hong Kong Nang Yan
College of Higher Education. These loans were unsecured
and were repayable in June and July 2017. The loans from
ultimate holding company and related parties were fully
repaid on 7 March 2017 and 17 March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERESY R R DT ()

On 25 February 2017, the Group obtained a term loan facility
from Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited with a maximum
principal amount of US$25.0 million or its equivalent in Hong
Kong dollars. This facility has a term of six months from the
date of the facility letter and bears an interest of 1.50% per
annum over LIBOR (for draw-downs in U.S. dollars) or 1.50%
per annum over HIBOR (for draw-downs in Hong Kong
dollars). The Group has made a draw-down of this term loan
facility on 7 March 2017 amounted to approximately US$20.8
million (equivalent to approximately RMB143.2 million) to
fully repay the loans borrowed from the ultimate holding
company and related parties on 7 March 2017 and 17 March
2017. The bank loan has been fully repaid on 22 March 2017
by using the Proceeds from Listing.

Capital Structure

There has been no change in the capital structure of
the Group since the Listing Date and up to the Latest
Practicable Date. The capital of the Group only comprises of
ordinary shares.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigations or
claims of material importance, pending or threatened against
any member of the Group (2015: nil).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not pledge any
assets.

Off-balance Sheet Arrangements

The Group does not have any special purpose entities that
provide financing, liquidity, market risk or credit support to it
or engage in leasing, hedging or research and development
services with it. The Group has not entered into any
derivative contracts that are indexed to the Shareholders
of the Group and classified as shareholders’ equity, or that
are not reflected in its financial statements. Moreover, the
Group does not have any retained or contingent interest in
assets transferred to an unconsolidated entity that services
as credit, liquidity or market risk support to such entity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The majority of the Group’s revenue and expenditures are
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). As at 31 December
2016, certain bank balances were denominated in United
States dollar (“US$”) and Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"). The
Group currently does not have any foreign currency hedging
policies, it does not foresee any significant currency
exposure in the near future. However, any permanent or
significant changes in US$ and HK$ against RMB, may
have possible impact on the Group’s results and financial
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positions.
Key Financial Ratios ETEHHBLE
As at/for the year ended
31 December
M12A318/
BZE12A31HILFEE
Net profit margin® RN EO 56.1% 50.1%
Return on assets® BEBRE® 11.8% 9.9%
Return on equity® AR A [B] 7 2 @) 16.7% 12.8%
Current ratio® TENEL ZE @ 222.0% 293.3%
Gearing ratio® BREBEXO 8.9% 8.4%
Notes: Bt

(M

(2)

Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for
the year.

Return on assets equals profit for the year divided by average
total assets as at the end of the year.

Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by average
total equity amounts as at the end of the year.

Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as
at the end of the year.

Gearing ratio equals interest-bearing loans divided by total equity
as of the end of the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EERESY R R DT ()

Net Profit Margin

The net profit margin increased from approximately 50.1%
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
56.1% for the year ended 31 December 2016. The income
tax expense in a relevant large amount in 2015 is mainly
due to a distribution of dividends by Chongaging College of
Humanities, Science and Technology to its school sponsor,
Li'ang Industry, in 2015, which resulted in Li'ang Industry
having to pay the relevant EIT in 2015.

Return on Assets and Return on Equity

The return on assets ratio was approximately 11.8% as
at 31 December 2016, and return on equity ratio was
approximately 16.7% as at 31 December 2016. Both of the
return ratios as at 31 December 2016 were higher than the
return ratios as at 31 December 2015 primarily due to an
increase in our profit in 2016, which increased at a faster
pace than the increase in our average total assets and
average total equity.

Current Ratio

The current ratio decreased to approximately 222.0% as
at 31 December 2016 from approximately 293.3% as at 31
December 2015, primarily due to the rate of increase of
current liabilities outpacing the increase of current assets.
The current liabilities as at 31 December 2016 mainly
reflected the reclassification from non-current liabilities to
current liabilities of the loans, which have been repaid on 7
March 2017, borrowed from the ultimate holding company to
repurchase issued ordinary shares from previous investors
in 2016.

Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio increased to approximately 8.9% as at 31
December 2016 from approximately 8.4% as at 31 December
2015, primarily due to the increase in the amount of accrued
interest for the interest-bearing loans from the ultimate
holding company and certain related parties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued) ‘

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a total of 2,206
employees. Employees of the Group are remunerated based
on their performance, experience and prevailing industry
practices, with all compensation policies and packages
reviewed on a regular basis. As required by PRC laws
and regulations, we participate in various employee social
security plans for our employees that are administered
by local governments, including housing provident fund,
pension, medical, maternity insurance, work-related injury
insurance and unemployment insurance.

In addition, the Group provides comprehensive training
programs to its existing and newly recruited employees and/
or sponsors the employees to attend various job-related
training courses.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not make any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or associates.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments and capital assets.
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DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xuechun, aged 63, is the founder of our Group. Since
October 1998, Mr. Li has served as chairman of the board of
directors of Li'ang Industry. He was appointed as a Director
of our Company on 13 December 2005 and has been the
Chairman of the Board since 17 January 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 10 years of experience in the education industry,
having served as the Chairman of the Board since 2006. In
addition, Mr. Li served as the vice-chairman of the Chinese
Association for Non-Government Education* (FERH#HE
&) from May 2008 to November 2016 and has served as
the executive-chairman of Chongqging Association for Non-
Government Education* (EERWFHEHE) since 2014. Mr.
Li is responsible for the strategic development of our Group.
Mr. Li graduated from the CPC Central Party School* (/4
PR ER) with a degree in Economic Management in June
1988 through long distance learning courses. He is currently
a member of the National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference* (FEIARBUAHE €%
2HZEE D) and serves as a representative on its Science
Education Culture Health and Sport Commission* (B A
REUA A eRmMEIEEEZE®). Mr. Li was awarded as a
National Education Industry Model Worker* (2EREFHE T
{E%) by the Ministry of Education of the PRC in September
2014. Mr. Li did not hold any directorship in any listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. Li is the father-in-law of Mr. Zuo Yichen, the executive
Director and Vice President of the Company.

*

English names are translated for identication purpose only.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Zhang Weiping, aged 52, joined the Group in April
2007. Ms. Zhang was appointed as a Director of our
Company on 27 July 2008, and served as the Chief
Operational Officer of our Group from April 2007 to
August 2016. Ms. Zhang was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on 1 August 2016. Since
September 2000, Ms. Zhang has held various positions
with Chongqging College of Humanities, Science and
Technology, including being appointed as professor by
Southwestern Normal University Yucai College* (Fam AN
FAREBE A EML) (a predecessor of Chongging College of
Humanities, Science and Technology) in 2004. She currently
serves as the executive principal and party secretary of the
school. Ms. Zhang has more than 15 years of experience
in the education industry and is responsible for the overall
management and operation of our Group. Ms. Zhang
graduated from Southwestern University* (P A (formerly
known as Southwestern Normal College* (FufhH&i£26%))
with a bachelor’s degree in law in 1988 and a master’s
degree in law in 1998. Ms. Zhang held various positions
with Southwestern University during the period from 1988 to
2007, where she was appointed an associate professor in
2001 before receiving a further promotion to the position of
researcher in 2007. Between December 2007 to December
2012, Ms. Zhang was a representative member of Chongqging
Municipal People's Congress* (EEMARRKRERAE). She
has served as a vice president of the Higher Education
Commission of the China Non-Governmental Education
Association* (FEIRMIFHE #HE) since 2011. Ms. Zhang was
awarded the “Advance Education Workers in Chongging*
(%A T1EE)” award by Chongging Municipal Education
Commission in September 2007. She was also named as
an “Outstanding Party Affairs Worker* ((BEF £ TIEE)” by
Southwestern University* (A AE) in June 2006. Ms. Zhang
did not hold any directorship in any listed companies during
the last three years.

*

English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESRSREEE (§)

Mr. Zuo Yichen, aged 36, joined the Group in August 2016
as Vice President. Mr. Zuo was appointed as a Director of
our Company on 23 August 2016. Mr. Zuo has more than 14
years of experience in banking practice. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Zuo was employed by the Bank of China from
July 2002 to March 2016, and last occupied the position
of head office senior manager. Mr. Zuo graduated from
Beijing Foreign Studies University* (3t ®ZINEEAE) in 2002
with a bachelor of arts degree, majoring in French. Mr. Zuo
was a Letter of Guarantee Expert certified by Chamber of
Commerce China* (FREIBIEE®) from June 2012 to May
2014. He obtained the certificate of Certified Treasury
Professional (CTP) from the Association for Financial
Professionals in June 2014. He has been a Certified Anti-
Money Laundering Specialist (CAMS) charterholder since
September 2015. Mr. Zuo did not hold any directorship in
any listed companies during the last three years.

Mr. Zuo is the son-in-law of Mr. Li Xuechun, the executive
Director and chairman of the Board of the Company.

*

English names are translated for identication purpose only.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Lam Ngai Lung, aged 40, joined the Group in May
2012 as the general manager of our investment department
and was subsequently appointed as a Director of our
Company on 23 August 2016. Mr. Lam has served as the
Chief Financial Officer of our Group since 22 May 2016.
Mr. Lam has more than 15 years of experience in the field
of accounting, and finance. Prior to joining our Group, He
served as an audit assistant with Nexia Charles Mar Fan &
Co., a firm of Certified Public Accounts, between September
2000 and November 2003. From November 2003 to October
2006, Mr. Lam was employed by PricewaterhouseCoopers
and last occupied the position of senior associate. Between
November 2006 and March 2007, Mr. Lam was employed
as an assistant manager at TOM Group Limited, a company
listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2383) since
August 2004 and was primarily responsible for internal
operational reviews. From March 2007 to May 2012, Mr.
Lam served as an advisory manager at KPMG. Mr. Lam
graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology in November 1999 with a bachelor of science
in mathematics degree. In October 2000, He obtained the
Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting from the
City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Lam has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2004 and a Chartered Financial Analyst (CFA)
charterholder since 2005. He did not hold any directorship
in any listed companies during the last three years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESRSREEE (§)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, aged 52, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director of our Company on
2 March 2017. Mr. Chan is a partner and founder of Kenny
Chan & Co., a firm of Certified Public Accounts. Mr. Chan
has over 25 years of experience in accounting, taxation,
auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Chan holds a bachelor of
commerce degree obtained from the University of New South
Wales in 1988 and is a member of Chartered Accountants
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
currently serves as the independent non-executive director
of TSC Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 206), Convoy
Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 1019), WLS Holdings
Ltd (stock code: 8021), Combest Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8190), Sing on Holdings Limited (stock code: 8352)
and AMCO United Holding Limited (stock code: 630), each
of which is a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Huangcheng, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of our Company on 2
March 2017. From March 2009 to March 2010, Mr. Yu was
employed by the Investment Promotion Bureau of Haidian
District* (&BEIXE(RER) and last occupied the position
of section chief (El&). Since March 2010, Mr. Yu has
served as an investment director at Kunwu Jiuding Capital
Holdings Co., Ltd. (RENREEERERMERAA), which is
a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600053). Mr. Yu graduated from Macquarie University
in Australia with a Master’s degree in applied finance in
November 2008. Mr. Yu did not hold any directorship in any
listed companies during the last three years.

*

English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew, aged 61, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director of our Company
on 2 March 2017. He was admitted as Solicitor of the High
Court in Hong Kong in January 1982 and has over 30
years of experience in the legal practice. Mr. Wang was
the Head of Legal and Compliance Department of China
Development Bank Corporation Hong Kong Branch between
from August 2010 to September 2011. Before joining China
Development Bank Corporation Hong Kong, he was a
Partner of the Finance & Projects Group of DLA Piper Hong
Kong from October 2006 to November 2009. Mr. Wang has
also been a Notary Public since 1992. Actively involved in
public sector advisory and statutory bodies, amongst the
appointments he is the Chairman of Appeal Tribunal Panel
(Building Ordinance), and former member of Notaries Public
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel. In 2005, he was invited by former
President of the United States Bill Clinton to participate in
the Clinton Global Initiative Fund held in New York 2005. Mr.
Wang has served as an independent non-executive director
of Infinity Financial Group (Holdings) Limited (FTEtF%E
(F=h%) BBRA7]), a company listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1152) since October 2011. Mr. Wang graduated
from Concordia University, Canada with a bachelor of arts
degree in Communications Arts.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESRSREEE (§)

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Wei, aged 50, joined the Group in October 2005
and is currently the financial director and head of finance
department of Chongqging College of Humanities, Science
and Technology. Mr. Wang has over 15 years of experience
in finance and accounting and is primarily responsible
for the finance and accounting of our Group’s schools in
Chongging. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Wang worked as
accountant with Beijing Zhongruicheng Lianhe Accounting
Firm Chongqing Branch* (It in#lia @t EBMEED
FT) and Chongqing Tongguan Accounting Firm Co., Ltd.*
(EEBTEMEBMERZMLART). Mr. Wang graduated
from Jiangxi Caijing College* ((TFAEF &2 7)) with a bachelor
degree in economics in July 1989.

Mr. Li Jiandong, aged 44, joined our Group in January
2016 and is currently the deputy officer of logistics of
Chongging College of Humanities, Science and Technology
and has been primarily responsible for the logistical
support of our schools in Chongging. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. Li served as the general manager of Shandong
Dongying Jinheng Furniture Co., Ltd.* (LERR&4EFRA
BRAR]), a company primarily engaged in export and
trading of furniture, between June 2010 to December 2015,
From March 1999 to March 2010, Mr. Li was employed by
Shandong Shenghui Timber Co, Ltd.* (IUERBEAREBR A F)
and last occupied the position of deputy general manager.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Shan is the company secretary of our
Company and was appointed on 21 September 2016. Ms. Ng
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. Ms. Ng is an assistant
vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited
and her major responsibility is assisting listed companies in
professional company secretarial work.

*

English names are translated for identification purpose only.
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REPORT OF
THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present the reports and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated on 13 December 2005 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the laws of the
Cayman lIslands. The Company’s shares were listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 22 March 2017 (the
“Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is principally engaged in providing educational
services in the People's Republic of China (the “PRC").
Details of the principal activities of the Group’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the
Company, the Company has maintained sufficient public
float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital as required under the Listing Rules as at the
date of this report.

RESULTS

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2016
and the state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out
in the consolidated financial statements on pages 92 to 188.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of business of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2016 is set out in the Management Discussion
and Analysis on pages 10 to 25.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to various risks in the operations
of the Group’s business and the Group believes that risk
management is important to the Group’s success. Key
operational risks faced by the Group include, among others,
changes in general market conditions and perceptions
of formal higher education, changes in the regulatory
environment in the PRC education industry, the ability of
the Group to offer quality education to students, the ability
of the Group to increase student enroliment and/or raise
tuition rates, the potential expansion of the Group into other
regions in China, availability of financing to fund the Group’s
expansion and business operations and competition from
other school operators that offer similar quality of education
and have similar scale.

In addition, the Group also faces numerous market risks,
such as foreign currency risk and liquidity risks that arise in
the normal course of the Group’s business.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Foreign Currency Risk

All of the Group’s turnover and substantially all of the
Group’s operating expenses are denominated in RMB, which
is not a freely convertible currency. The PRC Government
imposes controls on the convertibility of RMB into foreign
currencies and, in certain cases, the remittance of currency
out of Mainland China. Shortages in the availability of
foreign currencies may restrict the ability of the Group’s
PRC subsidiaries to remit sufficient foreign currencies to pay
dividends or other amounts to the Group.

Liquidity Risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internally generated cash flows from operations and other
borrowings. The Group regularly reviews its major funding
positions to ensure that it has adequate financial resources
in meeting its financial obligations.

To properly manage these risks, the Group has established
risk management structures and measures. The details are
set out on pages 75 to 77 “Risk Management and Internal
Control” of corporate governance report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for
the last four financial years are set out on page 6 “Financial
Highlights” of this annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are
set out in Note 13 to the financial statements.

The Group’s properties, included above at cost, were
valued at RMB1,484,580,000 as at 31 December 2016 in
the prospectus issued on 10 March 2017 in connection with
the listing of the Company’s shares on 22 March 2017. Had
the Group’s properties been included in these financial
statements at such valuation amount throughout the year
ended 31 December 2016, an additional depreciation charge
of RMB16,121,000 would have been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2016.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group held available-for-sale investments and
investment deposits during the year ended 31 December
2016. Details of available-for-sale investments and
investment deposits of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in Notes 18, 22 and 23 to the financial
statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER LOANS

The Group did not have any bank loans as at 31 December
2016. Particulars of loans from the ultimate holding company
and related parties as at 31 December 2016 are set out in
Notes 26 and 27 to the financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTION RESERVE

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 38 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 95 to 96, respectively. As at 31
December 2016, the aggregate amount of reserve available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB1,570,703,000 (2015: approximately
RMB1,331,201,000).

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the Shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (year ended 31 December 2015:
nil).

There is no arrangement that a shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividend.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands or under the Company’s Articles
of Association that require the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

As shares of the Company were not yet listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange during the year ended 31 December
2016, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

No service provided to a single customer contributes 10% or
more of the total revenue of the Group during the reporting
period.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 35.3% of the total purchases for in 2016 and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
11.8% of the Group's total purchases for the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or any of
the substantial Shareholders of the Company (which are
disclosed to the Directors) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining
a good relationship with its employees, customers and
suppliers to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The
Group maintains a good relationship with employees,
customers and suppliers. During the reporting period, there
were no material and significant dispute between the Group
and its employees, customers and/or suppliers.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds
received by the Company from the global offering in the
amount of approximately HK$1,350.7 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,198.1 million), after deducting
underwriting commissions and all related expenses. The
net proceeds received from the global offering will be
used in the manner consistent with that mentioned in the
section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the
Prospectus.

Since the Listing Date of the Company and up to the date of
this annual report, approximately US$20.8 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB143.2 million) was used to repay a
term loan from a third-party financial institution, which was
used to repay the loans borrowed from the ultimate holding
company and related parties.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Group did not make any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries or associates.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016 amounted to approximately
RMB691,000 (2015: approximately RMB230,000).

RECTIFICATION MEASURES

As disclosed in the “Business” section of the Prospectus of
the Company, the Group has certain buildings occupied by
Chongqging College of Humanities, Science and Technology,
Pass College of Chongging Technology and Business
University and Inner Mongolia Fengzhou Vocational College
(Qingcheng Branch) that had defective titles. The Group
has ceased using such buildings and the Group is using the
best efforts to promptly make appropriate applications with
the relevant government authorities to obtain the required
permits and/or acceptance checks. As at the date of this
annual report, the status of the buildings are as follows:

Total number of
buildings which
we have obtained
the building
ownership
certificates as at
the date of this
annual report

Total number
of buildings

with defective
titles as
disclosed in
the Prospectus

ESSTHRS(E)

=EX

REBREZ2016F 12 A31 HIEFEFT
TENEZBR A B ARE 691,0007L(2015
F AR 230,0007T) ©

BYIETE

MR R BB BR[| — B PR EE
BRAXHERSZR ERETIHAZ2RAE
BERAREEMBESE (TR ) E B
METEFEEERRIE - AEEDFLE
EAZEET MAKEIEREMBBEK
AR ELEERB  UREREN
niF—f &/_‘Zﬁ‘ﬁ% BHEXRFRAL 2

The number of buildings
covered by applications
with the relevant
government authorities

to obtain the required
permits and/or acceptance
checks as at the date of
this annual report
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Buildings occupied by FEEERIE BRMERSERE {fEH RS - DUEUS R EMFF A
BFRUATHEGER AEFAY FERZENEFEY IR /IREUNEFEHE
Chongging College of 15 11 4

Humanities, Science and

Technology
EE AR R
Pass College of Chongqing 3 3 —

Technology and Business

University
BETHARZRTENR
Inner Mongolia Fengzhou 5 — 5

Vocational College
(Qingcheng Branch)
NG EMBESR (TR k)
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EFSHRSE(E)

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year of 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Xuechun (Chairman of the Board)

Ms. Zhang Weiping (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Zuo Yichen (appointed on 23 August 2016)

Mr. Lam Ngai Lung (appointed on 23 August 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (appointed on 2 March 2017)
Mr. Yu Huangcheng (appointed on 2 March 2017)
Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew (appointed on 2 March 2017)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company
considers such Directors to be independent in accordance
with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 26
to 32 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 34 to the financial statements, no
Director had a material beneficial interest in, either directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year 2016 and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At no time during the year 2016, the Directors or their
respective associates had engaged in or had any interest
in any business which competes or may compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued) ‘

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARE, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As the Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange
on 31 December 2016, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”) and Section
352 of the SFO did not apply to the Directors and chief
executives of the Company as at 31 December 2016.

At the Listing Date, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as
follows:

Long Position in the Shares

ESSTHRS(E)

EERIETHRAERKRSG - HEKRHO R
EREITHEENEREIRE

AARRQFN2016FE 12 A31 B H A REERL
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F 8N WM EFH K EIEEHI 5 352 {0 T i
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PHARER S NS GPIE 352K AL
BRBAARRFENELM  BRELD
BOTAEFETEFRZNEEST (TR
T DAMEARRR MR AH R K
KR
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in the
Company as at the

Listing Date
Nature of Number AL A
Name of Director interest of shares held Position RAQTH
BEENS ERME BEERAEE HE KA BRRESAE DL
Mr. Li Xuechun (Net) Beneficial owner 3,000,000,000 Long 75%
BRI LMD EmEa A e
Note:  Mr. Li Xuechun (“Mr. Li") holds 90% of the issued share capital  Mist: FEFLA([FL4E DNFAEHIHEEEAR

RNFTHE 1)90% B BT A - I A H
RO —FE MR ETHEEEFER
HEROHEZ TELLTATEENL
5 HEAEBIRBR T 10% B BITIRA -

of Honest Cheer Investments Limited (“Honest Cheer”) and is
its sole director and he is therefore deemed to be interested in
the shares held by Honest Cheer upon the Listing. Ms. Li Ning,
daughter of Mr. Li, holds the remaining 10% of the issued share
capital of Honest Cheer.

4]
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, neither the
Chief Executives nor any of the Directors of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As the Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange
on 31 December 2016, Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO and Section 336 of the SFO did not apply to any
substantial Shareholders of the Company as at 31 December
2016.

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at the Listing Date, the persons (other than
Director or chief executive of the Company) or corporations
who had interest or short positions in the Shares and
underlying Shares of the Company which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO
were as follows:
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued) ‘

Number of
shares held

FEROEE

Nature of
interest

EEtE

Name of Shareholder

KRR &M

Honest Cheer Beneficial owner 3,000,000,000
) EnBEBA
City Legend Beneficial owner 332,000,000

International Limited EmiEA A

EEEBRARAT

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company are not
aware of any other person or corporation having an interest
or short position in the Shares and underlying Shares of
the Company which would require to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year 2016 were rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in the
Company granted to any of the Directors or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such
rights exercised by any of them; or was the Company, or any
of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

ESSTHRS(E)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND OTHER
INFORMATION

Each of our executive Directors (other than Mr. Lam Ngai
Lung) has entered into a service contract with the Company
for an initial fixed term of three years commencing from 1
August 2016 and Mr. Lam Ngai Lung has entered into a
service contract with the Company for an initial fixed term
of three years commencing from 22 May 2016. The term of
each of the service contracts between the Company and
the executive Directors will be automatically renewed for a
further term of three years upon the expiration of the initial
term, until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other (or otherwise in
accordance with the terms of the relevant service contract).

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial fixed term of one year commencing from the Listing
Date and the term of each of these service contracts will be
automatically renewed for a further term of one year after the
expiration of the initial term, until terminated by not less than
three months’ notice in writing by served by either party on
the other (or otherwise in accordance with the terms of the
relevant service contract).

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Li Xuechun, Ms. Zhang Weiping and Mr.
Lam Ngai Lung will retire from the Board by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed for the year ended 31
December 2016 and up to the date of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The following is a summary of principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme conditionally approved by a resolution of our
sole shareholder passed on 2 March 2017 and adopted by
a resolution of the Board on 2 March 2017 (the “Adoption
Date”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

1.  Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to give
the Eligible Persons (as defined in the following
paragraph) an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the Company and help motivate them to optimize
their future contributions to the Group and/or to reward
them for their past contributions, to attract and retain
or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with
such Eligible Persons who are significant to and/or
whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group, and
additionally in the case of Executives (as defined
below), to enable the Group to attract and retain
individuals with experience and ability and/or to reward
them for their past contributions.

EE2RS(E)

BEEEH

REBZE2016F12A31THIEFEREENR
FHREHMEI IR FEEEERE LT
KAFEEHEMEE D EFHEL -

BREE

AT REME—RERN2017F3 20818
HORBREAB G ENBEST SN 20174
3A2R([HRMAEH ) HURFERTRANE
RS ERGRAME - BAE SN
A EMRAIFE A7 BRI

1. B#

BREHEERNABBAL(ERR
NEORMR AR REA (8 ABE R #
& WHBRERTEREAEEMN
ELER - R/ AR RSBENE
BAE T HRE) - ARSI B A R
TREBEFESREENES - 1§
REKYTENBEZR, HEFH
BN EFNANEEREE - 5
RIAKDZEEBALTOAIERE
AIMITRABCERR TXOME -
MERNEERSI RBEELREEHA
BTREMALE IR EEBENE
Bhie T 520 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &g

45



46

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options
(“Options”) to subscribe for such number of shares in
accordance with the terms set out in the Share Option
Scheme to:

(a)

any executive director of, manager of, or other
employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of
the Group (“Executive”), any proposed employee,
any full-time or part-time employee, or a person for
the time being seconded to work full-time or part-
time for any member of the Group (“Employee”);

a director or proposed director (including an
independent non-executive director) of any
member of the Group;

a direct or indirect shareholder of any member of
the Group;

a supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group;

a customer, consultant, business or joint
venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group;

a person or entity that provides design, research,
development or other support or any advisory,
consultancy, professional or other services to any
member of the Group;

an associate of any of the persons referred to in
paragraphs (a) to (f) above; and

any person involved in the business affairs of
the Company whom the Board determines to be
appropriate to participate in the Share Options
Scheme (the persons referred above are the
“Eligible Persons”).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
as at the Listing Date (such 10% limit representing
400,000,000 shares excluding shares which may fall
to be issued upon the exercise of the Over-allotment
Option granted by the Company) (the “Scheme Mandate
Limit”) provided that:

(a) the Company may at any time as our Board may
think fit seek approval from Shareholders of the
Company to refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit,
save that the maximum number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of shares of the Company in issue
as at the date of approval by the Shareholders
of the Company in general meeting where the
Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed. Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of the Company
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed
or exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme or any other schemes
of the Company) shall not be counted for the
purposes of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit as refreshed. The Company shall send to
Shareholders of the Company a circular containing
the details and information required under the
Listing Rules;

(b) the Company may seek separate approval from
the Shareholders of the Company in general
meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme
Mandate Limit, provided that the Options in excess
of the Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only
to the Eligible Person specified by the Company
before such approval is obtained. The Company
should issue a circular to the Shareholders of the
Company containing the details and information
required under the Listing Rules; and
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

(c) the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group shall not exceed 30% of the Company’s
issued share capital from time to time. No
Options may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company if this will result in such limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

No Option may be granted to any one person such that
the total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of Options granted and to be granted
to that person in any 12-month period exceeds 1% of
the Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
Where any further grant of Options to such an Eligible
Person would result in shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all Options granted and to be granted
to such Eligible Person (including exercised, cancelled
and outstanding Options) in the 12-month period
up to and including the date of such further grant
representing in aggregate over 1% of our Shares in
issue, such further grant shall be separately approved
by the Shareholders of the Company in general meeting
with such Eligible Person and his close associates (or
his associates if such Eligible Person is a connected
person) abstaining from voting. The Company shall
send a circular to the Shareholders of the Company
disclosing the identity of the Eligible Person, the
number and terms of the Options to be granted (and
Options previously granted) to such Eligible Person,
and containing the details and information required
under the Listing Rules. The number and terms
(including the subscription price) of the Options to be
granted to such Eligible Person must be fixed before
the approval of the Shareholders of the Company and
the date of the Board meeting proposing such grant
shall be taken as the offer date for the purposes of
calculating the subscription price of those Options.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Offer and grant of Options

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board shall be entitled at any time within 10 years from
the Adoption Date to offer the grant of an Option to
any Eligible Person as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe at the subscription price
for such number of shares as the Board may (subject
to the terms of the Share Option Scheme) determine
(provided the same shall be a board lot for dealing
in the shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral
multiple thereof).

Granting Options to connected persons

Subject to the terms in the Share Option Scheme, only
insofar as and for so long as the Listing Rules require,
where any offer of an Option is proposed to be made to
a director, chief executive or a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of their respective associates, such offer must
first be approved by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company (excluding the independent
non-executive Director who or whose associates is the
grantee of an Option).

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the securities
issued and to be issued upon exercise of all Options
already granted and to be granted (including Options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant:

(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
relevant class of securities in issue; and

(b) (where the securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange), having an aggregate value, based on
the closing price of the securities at the date of
each grant, in excess of HK$5.0 million,
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such further grant of Options must be approved by the
Shareholders of the Company (voting by way of a poll).
The Company shall send a circular to the Shareholders
containing the information required under the Listing
Rules. The grantee, his associates and all core
connected persons of the Company must abstain from
voting in favor at such general meeting.

Approval from the Shareholders is required for any
change in the terms of Options granted to a participant
who is a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates. The grantee, his associates
and all core connected persons of the Company must
abstain from voting in favour at such general meeting.

Restriction on the time of grant of Options

The Board shall not grant any Option under the Share
Option Scheme after inside information has come
to its knowledge until such inside information has
been announced pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. In particular, no Option shall be granted
during the period commencing one month immediately
preceding the earlier of the date of the Board meeting
(as such date is first notified to the Stock Exchange in
accordance with the Listing Rules) for the approval of
the Company’s results for any year, half-year, quarterly
or any other interim period (whether or not required
under the Listing Rules) and the deadline for the
Company to publish an announcement of its results for
any year, half-year, quarterly or any other interim period
(whether or not required under the Listing Rules), and
ending on the date of the results announcements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Minimum holding period, vesting and performance target

Subject to the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Board
may in its absolute discretion when offering the grant
of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set
forth in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may
think fit (to be stated in the letter containing the offer
of the grant of the Option) including (without prejudice
to the generality of the foregoing) qualifying and/or
continuing eligibility criteria, conditions, restrictions or
limitations relating to the achievement of performance,
operating or financial targets by the Company and/
or the grantee, the satisfactory performance or
maintenance by the grantee of certain conditions or
obligations or the time or period before the right to
exercise the Option in respect of any of the shares shall
vest provided that such terms or conditions shall not
be inconsistent with any other terms or conditions of
the Share Option Scheme. For the avoidance of doubt,
subject to such terms and conditions as the Board
may determine as aforesaid (including such terms
and conditions in relation to their vesting, exercise or
otherwise) there is no minimum period for which an
Option must be held before it can be exercised and no
performance target which need to be achieved by the
grantee before the Option can be exercised.

Amount payable for Options and offer period

An offer of the grant of an Option shall remain open
for acceptance by the Eligible Person concerned for
a period of 28 days from the offer date provided that
no such grant of an Option may be accepted after
the expiry of the effective period of the Share Option
Scheme. An Option shall be deemed to have been
granted and accepted by the Eligible Person and
to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance
in favor of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company on or before the date upon which an offer of
an Option must be accepted by the relevant Eligible
Person, being a date no later than 28 days after the
offer date (the “Acceptance Date”). Such remittance
shall in no circumstances be refundable.

8.

9.

EE2RS(E)

RIEFEHR - FBRAEXEE

R EMARANMEX - RIEE2R B
- EF g 2NN EK
BN ETERRRENE
AR R ) (R R I~ AR PR B (K
REBBERLBEREZONEAS) - &
BERAZE L —RRAMBERT)
BER S EFERALR R
BRAZHESG KESIYBEENE
RAZAE R - SRR H - ARA
ERTETIRFSERETTENM
BRI AT ) B dn 1 8 AU #E R
55 8 A A B R SR - R B R KA
R 15 B 8 A A At 8 A0 1 o] EL At 16
REMGEET—B - RRERR - RIE
L EF A B E R A BRI AR
(BREEMBRENRE - /TESEM
SRR IGRME) - R R T
(£ /I B 7R F5 A BB A R SR ARG HARR
1M 48 P 4 ] 1T (AR A TN ZRGE
HEMEERR -

BIRERENEHERBXR

BERALTAREBLHBHE28H R
B OBERENZY AR
P AT 81 A R fE i 1R 1 VR BB X
o ARFNEBEERALAER
BREZOZE  ITEREHES
%28 B A M([ZMBH ) &z AR
ERARALARENBRIZAER
RELHNZHHMFRIAN  ERARR
Bl A YR A B9 1.0078 TTIE R (1E R
HEEREM R E)E - BB RERS
FEERHAKAERALTEMNLE
o ZEFEABER T TFEM -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &g

S1



52

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

10.

Any offer of the grant of an Option may be accepted
in respect of less than the number of shares in respect
of which it is offered provided that it is accepted in
respect of board lots for dealing in shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof and such
number is clearly stated in the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option. To
the extent that the offer of the grant of an Option is not
accepted by the Acceptance Date, it will be deemed to
have been irrevocably declined.

Subscription price

The subscription price in respect of any particular
Option shall be such price as the Board may in its
absolute discretion determine at the time of grant of
the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the Option) but the
subscription price shall not be less than whichever is
the highest of:

(a) the nominal value of a share;

(b) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the offer
date; and

(c) the average closing price of a share as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 Business Days (as defined in the Listing
Rules) immediately preceding the offer date.

10.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Exercise of Option

(a)

An Option shall be exercised in whole or in part
(but if in part only, in respect of a board lot or any
integral multiple thereof) within the Option period in
the manner as set out in this Share Option Scheme
by the grantee (or his or her legal personal
representative(s)) by giving notice in writing to
the Company stating that the Option is thereby
exercised and specifying the number of shares in
respect of which it is exercised. Each such notice
must be accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the aggregate subscription price for
the shares in respect of which the notice is given.
Within 28 days after receipt of the notice and,
where appropriate, receipt of a certificate from our
auditors pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
the Company shall accordingly allot and issue the
relevant number of shares to the grantee (or his
or her legal personal representative(s)) credited
as fully paid with effect from (but excluding) the
relevant exercise date and issue to the grantee (or
his or her legal personal representative(s)) share
certificate(s) in respect of the shares so allotted.

The exercise of any Option may be subject to a
vesting schedule to be determined by the Board in
its absolute discretion, which shall be specified in
the offer letter.

The exercise of any Option shall be subject
to the members of the Company in general
meeting approving any necessary increase in the
authorised share capital of the Company.
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EEZHS(E)

(d)

Subject as hereinafter provided and subject to
the terms and conditions upon which the Option
was granted, an Option may be exercised by the
Grantee at any time during the Option Period,
provided that:

()

in the event that the grantee dies or becomes
permanently disabled before exercising an
Option (or exercising it in full) and none of
the events for termination of employment or
engagement pursuant to the terms of the
Share Option Scheme exists with respect to
such grantee, he or she (or his or her legal
representative(s)) may exercise the Option up
to the grantee's entitlement immediately prior
to the death or permanently disability (to the
extent not already exercised) within a period
of 12 months following his or her death or
permanent disability or such longer period as
the Board may determine;

in the event that the grantee ceases to be an
Executive for any reason (including his or her
employing company ceasing to be a member
of the Group) other than his or her death,
permanent disability, retirement pursuant to
such retirement scheme applicable to the
Group at the relevant time or the transfer of
his or her employment to an affiliate company
or the termination of his or her employment
with the relevant member of the Group by
resignation or culpable termination, the
Option (to the extent not already exercised)
shall lapse on the date of cessation of such
employment and not be exercisable unless the
Board otherwise determines in which event
the Option (or such remaining part thereof)
shall be exercisable within such period as the
Board may in its absolute discretion determine
following the date of such cessation;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

if a general offer is made to all holders of
shares and such offer becomes or is declared
unconditional (in the case of a takeover offer)
or is approved by the requisite majorities at
the relevant meetings of the Shareholders
of the Company (in the case of a scheme of
arrangement), the grantee shall be entitled to
exercise the Option (to the extent not already
exercised) at any time (in the case of a
takeover offer) within one month after the date
on which the offer becomes or is declared
unconditional or (in the case of a scheme of
arrangement) prior to such time and date as
shall be notified by the Company;

if a compromise or arrangement between the
Company and its members or creditors is
proposed for the purposes of or in connection
with a scheme for the reconstruction of the
Company or its amalgamation with any other
company, the Company shall give notice
thereof to the grantees who have Options
unexercised at the same time as it dispatches
notices to all members or creditors of the
Company summoning the meeting to consider
such a compromise or arrangement and
thereupon each grantee (or his or her legal
representatives or receiver) may until the
expiry of the earlier of:

(1) the Option period;

(2) the period of two months from the date of
such notice; or

(3) the date on which such compromise or
arrangement is sanctioned by the court,
exercise in whole or in part his or her
Option.

(iii)
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(v) in the event a notice is given by the Company
to its members to convene a general meeting
for the purposes of considering, and if thought
fit, approving a resolution to voluntarily wind-
up the Company, the Company shall on the
same date as or soon after it dispatches
such notice to each member of the Company
give notice thereof to all grantees and
thereupon, each grantee (or his or her legal
personal representative(s)) shall be entitled
to exercise all or any of his or her options at
any time not later than two Business Days
(as defined in the Listing Rules) prior to the
proposed general meeting of the Company
by giving notice in writing to the Company,
accompanied by a remittance for the full
amount of the aggregate subscription price
for the shares in respect of which the notice
is given whereupon the Company shall as
soon as possible and, in any event, no later
than the business day (as defined in the
Listing Rules) immediately prior to the date
of the proposed general meeting referred to
above, allot the relevant Shares to the grantee
credited as fully paid.

12. Life of Share Option Scheme

Subject to the terms of this Share Option Scheme, the
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date on which it becomes unconditional,
after which no further options will be granted or offered
but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force and effect in all other respects. All
Options granted prior to such expiry and not then
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable
subject to and in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

13. Lapse of Share Option Scheme

An Option shall lapse automatically and not be
exercisable, to the extent not already exercised, on the
earliest of:

(a)
(b)

the expiry of the Option period;

the expiry of any of the period referred to
paragraphs related to exercise of the Option;

subject to the terms of the period mentioned in the
paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme — 11.
Exercise of Option” in this section, the date of the
commencement of the winding-up of the Company;

there is an unsatisfied judgement, order or award
outstanding against the grantee or the Board has
reason to believe that the grantee is unable to pay
or to have no reasonable prospect of being able to
pay his/her/its debts;

there are circumstances which entitle any person
to take any action, appoint any person, commence
proceedings or obtain any order of the type
mentioned in this Share Option Scheme with
respect to the exercise of the Option;

a bankruptcy order has been made against any
director or shareholder of the grantee (being a
corporation) in any jurisdiction.

No compensation shall be payable upon the lapse of
any Option, provided that the Board shall be entitled in
its discretion to pay such compensation to the grantee
in such manner as it may consider appropriate in any
particular case.
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14. Adjustment

In the event of any alteration to the capital structure of
the Company while any Option remains exercisable,
whether by way of capitalization of profits or
reserves, right issue, consolidations, reclassification,
reconstruction, sub-division or reduction of the share
capital of the Company, the Board may, if it considers
the same to be appropriate, direct that adjustments be
made to:

(a) the maximum number of shares subject to the
Share Option Scheme; and/or

(b) the aggregate number of shares subject to the
Option so far as unexercised; and/or

(c) the subscription price of each outstanding Option.

Where the Board determines that such adjustments
are appropriate (other than an adjustment arising
from a capitalization issue), the auditors appointed
by the Company shall certify in writing to the Board
that any such adjustments are in their opinion fair and
reasonable, provided that:

(a) any such adjustments shall give the Eligible
Persons the same proportion of equity capital
as they were previously entitled to. In respect of
any such adjustments, other than any made on a
capitalization issue, the auditors shall confirm to
the Board in writing that the adjustments satisfy
this requirement;

(b) any such adjustments shall be made on the basis
that the aggregate subscription price payable by
the grantee on the full exercise of any Option shall
remain as nearly as practicable same as (but shall
not be greater than) it was before such event;

(c) no such adjustments shall be made the effect of
which would be to enable a share to be issued at
less than its nominal value;
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

(d) any such adjustments shall be made to in
accordance with the provisions as stipulated under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and supplementary
guidance on the interpretation of the Listing Rules
issued by the Stock Exchange from time to time;
and

(e) the issue of securities as consideration in
a transaction shall not be regarded as a
circumstance requiring any such adjustments.

Cancellation of Options not exercised

The Board shall be entitled for the following causes to
cancel any Option in whole or in part by giving notice
in writing to the grantee stating that such Option is
thereby cancelled with effect from the date specified in
such notice (the “Cancellation Date”):

(a) the grantee commits or permits or attempts
to commit or permit a breach of restriction on
transferability of Option or any terms or conditions
attached to the grant of the Option;

(b) the grantee makes a written request to the Board
for the Option to be cancelled; or

(c) if the grantee has, in the opinion of the Board,
conducted himself in any manner whatsoever to
the detriment of or prejudicial to the interests of
the Company or its subsidiary.

The Option shall be deemed to have been cancelled
with effect from the Cancellation Date in respect of
any part of the Option which has not been exercised
as at the Cancellation Date. No compensation shall
be payable upon any such cancellation, provided that
the Board shall be entitled in its discretion to pay such
compensation to the grantee in such manner as it may
consider appropriate in any particular case.
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16.

17.

Ranking of Shares

The Shares to be allotted upon the exercise of an
Option will be subject to all the provisions of the
Articles of Association and the laws of the Cayman
Islands from time to time and shall rank pari passu in
all respects with the then existing fully paid Shares in
issue commencing from (i) the allotment date or, (ii) if
that date falls on a day when the register of members of
the Company is closed, the first date of the re-opening
of the register of members. Accordingly, it will entitle
the holders to participate in all dividends or other
distributions paid or made on or after (i) the allotment
date or, (ii) if that date falls on a day when the register
of members of the Company is closed, the first day of
the re-opening of the register of members, other than
any dividend or other distribution previously declared
or recommended or resolved to be paid or made if the
record date therefore shall be before the allotment date.

Share issued upon the exercise of an Option shall not
carry rights until the registration of the grantee (or any
other person) as the holder thereof.

Termination

The Company may by resolution in general meeting at
any time terminate the operation of the Share Option
Scheme. Upon termination of the Share Option Scheme
as aforesaid, no further Options shall be offered but
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall
remain in force and effect in all other respects. All
Options granted prior to such termination and not then
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable
subject to and in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Transferability

The Option shall be personal to the grantee and shall
not be assignable and no grantee shall in any way
sell, transfer, charge, mortgage, encumber or create
any interest (legal or beneficial) in favor of any third
party over or in relation to any Option or attempt to do
so (save that the grantee may nominate a nominee in
whose name the Shares issued pursuant to the Share
Option Scheme may be registered). Any breach of
the foregoing shall entitle the Company to cancel any
outstanding Option or part thereof granted to such
grantee.

Alteration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme may be altered in any
respect by a resolution of the Board except that the
following shall not be carried out except with the prior
sanction of an ordinary resolution of the Shareholders
of the Company in general meeting:

(a) any material alteration to its terms and conditions
or any change to the terms of Options granted
(except where the alterations take effect under the
existing terms of the Share Option Scheme);

(b) any alteration to the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme in relation to the matters set out in Rule
17.03 of the Listing Rules to the advantage of
grantee;

(c) any change to the authority of the Board or any
person or committee delegated by the Board
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme to administer
the day-to-day running of the Scheme; and

(d) any alteration to the aforesaid alternation
provisions.

provided always that the amended terms of the Share
Option Scheme shall comply with the applicable
requirements of the Listing Rules.

18.

19.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)
ESTRSE(E)

20. Conditions of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall come into effect on the
date on which the following conditions are fulfilled:

(a)

(b)

the approval of the Shareholders for the adoption
of the Share Option Scheme;

the approval of the Stock Exchange for the
listing of and permission to deal in, a maximum
of 400,000,000 shares to be allotted and issued
pursuant to the exercise of the Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Share Option Scheme;

the commencement of dealing in the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange; and

the obligations of the underwriters under the
Underwriting Agreement becoming unconditional
and not being terminated in accordance with the
terms thereof or otherwise.

If the permission referred to in paragraph (b) above
is not granted within two calendar months after the
Adoption Date:

(i)
(i)

(iif)

(iv)

the Share Option Scheme will forthwith terminate;

any Option granted or agreed to be granted
pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any
offer of such a grant shall be of no effect;

no person shall be entitled to any rights or benefits
or be under any obligations under or in respect of
the Share Option Scheme or any Option; and

the Board may further discuss and devise another
share option scheme that is applicable to a private
company for adoption by our Company.

Application has been made to the Stock Exchange for
the listing of 400,000,000 shares which may be issued
pursuant to the exercise of Options under the Share
Option Scheme.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

At the date of this annual report,
granted.

no Share Options were

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the Share Option Scheme of the Company as
disclosed in this annual report, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end
of the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

As at the date of this annual report, all Directors of the
Company were covered under the liability insurance
purchased by the Company for its Directors.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed 2,206
(2015: 1,875) staffs in the PRC and Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance,
working experience and the prevailing market price. Other
employee benefits include mandatory provident fund,
insurance and medical coverage and training programs.

A remuneration committee was set up for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management of the Group,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance of the Directors and senior management and
comparable market practices.

The Directors and senior management may also receive
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme. For
further details of the Share Option Scheme, please refer to
“Share Option Scheme” in this annual report.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, and five highest
paid individuals during the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.
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EEZHS(E)

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement and employee benefits scheme of
the Company are set out in “Employee benefits” of Note 2.4
to the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in Note 34 to the financial statements.

The transactions do not fall under “Connected Transactions”
or “Continuing Connected Transactions” in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION POLICIES

The Group is principally engaged in providing educational
services, a line of business that generally does not have
material impact on the environment. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group did not incur any material
cost of compliance with applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The important events occurred since the year ended 31
December 2016 are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Company was not engaged
in any litigation or arbitration of material importance and
no litigation or claim of material importance is known to the
Directors to be pending or threatening against the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (Continued)

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

As the Company was not yet listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange during the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Hong Kong Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance
Code”) was not applicable to us during the year ended 31
December 2016. After the Listing, the Company will comply
with all the code provisions set forth in the Corporate
Governance Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee in compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code. The members of the
audit committee have discussed with the management, and
reviewed, the 2016 financial statements as set out in this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 had been audited by Ernst & Young,
who will retire and being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment as auditor at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company has not changed its
external auditor since its Listing and up to the date of this
report.

RECOMMENDATION TO CONSULT PROFESSIONAL TAX
ADVICE

If the Shareholders of the Company are not sure about
the tax effect on the purchase, holding, sale, trading or
exercise of any rights attached to the relevant shares of the
Company, they are recommended to consult independent
experts for advice.

On behalf of the Board
Li Xuechun
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 April 2017
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CORPORATE

GOVRENANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing Shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, and to comply
with increasingly stringent regulatory requirements as well as
fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Company’s Shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 22 March 2017. As the Company’ shares
were not listed during the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Company was not subject to the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules during
2016. Since the Listing Date up to the date of this annual
report, the Company has been in compliance with all
applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance
Code.

THE BOARD
General

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The
Board sets the Group's overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance and reviews the corporate governance
standard of the Group. It is also responsible for approving
certain specific matters such as annual and interim
results, major transactions, director appointments or re-
appointments, investment policy, dividend and accounting
policies. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies and
managing the daily operations of the Group’s businesses to
the executive Directors and members of senior management,
The functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.
All Directors are provided with monthly updates on the
Company’s performance and financial position to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

All Board members have separate and independent access
to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group’s
expense upon their request.

The Board has established three Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee” and
collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee different
areas of the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors,
namely Mr. Li Xuechun, Ms. Zhang Weiping, Mr. Zuo
Yichen and Mr. Lam Ngai Lung and three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny,
Mr. Yu Huangcheng and Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew. A
list of the Directors identifying their roles and functions are
available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Directors
and Senior Management” in this annual report. All Directors
are required to declare to the Board upon their first
appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organizations.
These interests are updated on an annual basis and when
necessary.

Mr. Li Xuechun, the Chairman of Board, is the father-in-
law of Mr. Zuo Yichen, who is an executive Director of
the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there are no
other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among members of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERECRS (8)

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the corporate
governance report to ensure compliance. The Board’s
responsibility in this regard includes:

(a) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual applicable to employees and
Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board and report to the Board
on matters;

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report; and

(f) to review and monitor the Company’s compliance with
the Company’s whistleblowing policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Group to
protect the overall interests of the Shareholders and
the Group. They serve actively on the Board and Board
Committees to provide their independent and objective
views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board. Each independent non-executive
Director has confirmed his independence to the Company
with reference to the factors set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee
and the Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee
has its defined and written terms of reference approved by
the Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their
terms of reference are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 2 March 2017,
It comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny, Mr. Yu Huangcheng
and Mr. Wang Wei Hung, Andrew. Mr. Chan Ngai Sang,
Kenny, who has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as the
chairman of the Audit Committee.
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The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in providing an independent view of the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems, and relationship with
external auditors of the Group, overseeing the audit process
and performing other duties and such responsibilities as
assigned by the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 2 March
2017. It comprises three members, namely Mr. Wang Wei
Hung, Andrew, Mr. Li Xuechun and Mr. Yu Huangcheng.
The chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr,
Wang Wei Hung, Andrew. The principal responsibilities
of the Remuneration Committee are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration
structure and policy for all Directors and senior management
as well as the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management. No Director
takes part in any decision of the Board on his own
remuneration. The Company’s objective for its remuneration
policy is to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In order
to determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to
members of the Board, market rates and factors such as
each director’s workload, performance, responsibility, job
complexity and the Group’s performance are taken into
account.

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
of the Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2016
is set out below:

Remuneration bands

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and
the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
Notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements, respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 2 March
2017. It comprises three members, namely, Mr. Li Xuechun,
Mr. Yu Huangcheng and Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny. The
chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Li Xuechun.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee
are to review the composition of the Board, including its
structure, size and diversity at least annually to ensure that it
has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to the Board
suitably qualified persons to become a member of the Board,
monitor the succession planning of Directors and assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also review the Board Diversity
Policy (as defined below) from time to time, so as to develop
and review measurable objectives for the implementing the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the
progress on achieving these objectives.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as
this ensures better checks and balances and hence better
corporate governance. Mr. Li Xuechun holds the position of
the Chairman, who is primarily responsible for the strategic
development of the Group. Ms. Zhang Weiping serves as the
Chief Executive Officer, who is primarily responsible for the
overall management and operation of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
ERECRS (8)

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company for an
initial term of one year commencing from the Listing Date.
The term of each of the executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors of the Company is subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association. In
accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
Shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
shall hold office until the next following annual general
meeting or any Director appointed by the Board to fill casual
vacancies shall hold office until the next following general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the Shareholders.
In addition, at each annual general meeting one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual
general meeting at least once every three years, and are
eligible for re-election by the Shareholders.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the Board
adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 2 March 2017. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members.
While all Board appointments will continue to be made on a
merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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BOARD MEETINGS

In compliance with the Corporate Governance Code, Board
meetings will be held regularly and at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular
Board meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to
facilitate maximum attendance of the Directors. Directors
may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

At board meetings, the Directors will be provided with the
relevant documents to be considered and approved. Draft
and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary or a duly appointed
secretary of the Board meeting and are open for inspection
by any Director.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Board held
two meetings. The first meeting was for the approval of the
subdivision of Company’s shares which took effect on 5
July 2016, among other things. All Board members at that
moment, namely Mr. Li Xuechun and Ms. Zhang Weiping
have attend the meeting. The second meeting was for
the approval of the submission of the Company’s listing
application to the Stock Exchange, among other things. All
Board members at that moment, namely Mr. Li Xuechun,
Ms. Zhang Weiping, Mr. Zuo Yichen and Mr. Lam Ngai Lung
have attended the meeting held on 21 September 2016.
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ERECRS (8)

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues,
laws, rules and regulations. The Company will also arrange
regular seminars to provide Directors with updates on latest
development and changes in the Listing Rules and other
relevant legal and regulatory requirements from time to
time. In September 2016, the Company has arranged for
its legal adviser to conduct training sessions for each of
the Directors, namely, Mr. Li Xuechun, Ms. Zhang Weiping,
Mr. Zuo Yichen, Mr. Lam Ngai Lung, Mr. Chan Ngai Sang,
Kenny, Mr. Yu Huangcheng and Mr. Wang Wei Hung,
Andrew, regarding their responsibilities as a Director of
the Company under the Listing Rules and Hong Kong laws,
as well as the Company’s continuing obligations under the
Listing Rules upon it listing.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
(the “Securities Dealing Code”). The Directors’ compliance
with the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
during the period from the Listing Date up to and including
31 December 2017 will be reported in the corporate
governance report for the year ending 31 December 2017 to
be published in 2018.
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In addition, senior management of the Group who, because
of their office in the Company, are likely to be in possession
of inside information, have also been requested to comply
with the provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when
dealing in the Company’s shares.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ng Wing Shan is the company secretary of the Company
and was appointed on 21 September 2016. Ms. Ng is a
fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom. Ms. Ng is an assistant
vice president of SW Corporate Services Group Limited
and her major responsibility is assisting listed companies in
professional company secretarial work.

Ms. Ng’s primary contact person at the Company is Mr. Lam
Ngai Lung, an executive Director and the chief financial
officer of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, Ms. Ng has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training respectively in compliance with rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure the
Company maintains a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system.

The Group’s internal control system is designed to
safeguard assets against misappropriation and unauthorized
disposition and to manage operational risks. Review of
the Group's internal controls covering major financial,
operational and compliance controls, as well as risk
management functions. The controls built into the risk
management system are intended to manage significant
risks in the Group’s business.
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The Board is in charge of managing the overall risks of
our Group. It is responsible for considering, reviewing
and approving any significant business decision involving
material risk exposures, such as our decision to expand
our school network into new geographic areas, and to enter
into cooperative business relationships with third parties to
establish new schools. The Group also maintains insurance
coverage which is in line with customary practice in the PRC
education industry, including school liability insurance. The
Group also has arrangements with certain banks in place
to ensure that it will be able to obtain credit to support its
business operation and expansion.

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated
10 March 2017, taking into account the internal control
measures implemented by the Group in connection with
the non-compliance incidents disclosed under the section
headed “— Legal Proceedings and Compliance” in the
prospectus, the on-going monitoring and supervision by
the Board and the principals of the Group’s schools with
the assistance from professional external advisers where
required, and the fact that, as confirmed by the Directors,
the non-compliance incidents did not involve fraud or
dishonesty, the Directors are of the view that our enhanced
internal control measures are adequate and effective.

The Company has established an internal audit department
to carry out its internal audit functions by assisting the Board
to implement the Group’s of risk management framework.
The work of the internal audit department will be reviewed
by the Audit Committee and the Board annually. Taking
into account the report(s) to be provided by the Group’s
internal control department, the Board will confirm whether
the Group’s risk management and internal control system is
adequate and effective and the Group has complied with the
provisions on risk management and internal controls as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code for the year ending
31 December 2017 in the corporate governance report for
the year ending 31 December 2017 to be published in 2018.
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The Group regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information according to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Future Commission in June 2012 to ensure inside
information remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination
of such information is efficiently and consistently made. The
Company regularly reminds the Directors and employees
about due compliance with all policies regarding the
inside information. Also, the Company keeps Directors,
senior management and employees appraised of the latest
regulatory updates. The Company shall prepare or update
appropriate guidelines or policies to ensure the compliance
with regulatory requirements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN PREPARING FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the Group's state of affairs, results
and cash flows for the year and in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.
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ERECRS (8)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services
provided by the auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young,
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was approximately
as follows:

BB &

RRNFIZEENZ KA B ATE 2= 2016
F12A31BIEFEAAEEIRBEEBEEZ
NMIEEZ RSO ST -

Amount

Type of Services PR 7% & -l
RMB’000

ARETIT

Audit services EZARTE 4,791
Non-audit services IEFZ RS —
Total st 4,791

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication
with the Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and understanding of the Group’'s business,
performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes
the importance of timely and non-selective disclosure of
information, which will enable Shareholders and investors to
make the informed investment decisions.

At general meetings of the Company, the Shareholders
will have the opportunity to communicate directly with the
Directors. The Chairman of the Board and the chairman
of each of the Board Committees will attend the annual
general meetings to answer Shareholders’ questions. The
auditor of the Company will also attend the annual general
meetings to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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To promote effective communication, the Company adopts
a shareholders’ communication policy which aims at
establishing a two-way relationship and communication
between the Company and the Shareholders and maintains
a website of the Company at (www.minshengedu.com),
where up-to-date information on the Company’s business
operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
General

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will
be posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange in a timely manner after each general meeting.

Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration
at a general meeting of the Company according to the
Articles of Association. Any one or more members holding
as at date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of associations of
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed by a
Member (as defined therein) (other than the person to be
proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the meeting
for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a Notice signed by the
person to be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall
have been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Notice(s) are given, shall be at least
seven (7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the despatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and end
no later than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general
meeting.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could send their enquiries to
Mr. Lam Ngai Lung of Room 1102, 11/F., The Lee Gardens
One, 33 Hysan Avenue, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong (email
address: msedu@minshengedu.com).

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the third amended and restated
memorandum and articles of association of the Company on
2 March 2017 (with the memorandum of association and the
articles of association taking effect from 2 March 2017 and
the Listing Date, respectively). There was no change in the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company
during the period from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report.
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INDERPENDENT
AUDITOR'S REPORT

e
EY::

To the shareholders of Minsheng Education Group
Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

22/F, CITIC Tower
1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central

Hong Kong

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Minsheng Education Group Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 92 to 188, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’'s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREXER

Income tax

Brig#

According to the Implementation Rules for
the Law for Promoting Private Education (the
“Implementation Rules”), private schools,
whether requiring reasonable returns or not,
may enjoy preferential tax treatments. The
Implementation Rules provide that the relevant
authorities under the State Council may
introduce preferential tax treatments and related
policies applicable to private schools requiring
reasonable returns. Up to 31 December 2016, no
separate policies, regulations or rules have been
introduced by the authorities in this regard. In
accordance with the historical tax returns filed to
the relevant tax authorities and the confirmations
obtained therefrom, the Group’s schools in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC Schools”)
which require reasonable returns did not pay
corporate income tax and had enjoyed the
preferential corporate income tax exemption
treatments during 2016. Given that there are little
official policies, regulations or rules supporting
the preferential tax treatments enjoyed by the
PRC Schools, there are uncertainties on the
adoption of such preferential tax treatments by
the PRC Schools.

Relevant disclosures are included in note
3 “Significant Accounting Judgements and
Estimates” and note 10 “Income Tax” to the
financial statements.

BUZHENRS ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWERNEEFEREZER

As to our audit procedures, we have:

o reviewed the confirmations issued by the
local tax bureaus, in the areas where the
PRC Schools operate, to identify if the PRC
Schools were default in tax or in violation of
PRC tax laws;

o discussed with the Group’s PRC legal
advisors about the tax position taken by
the PRC Schools, in particular, whether
or not the PRC Schools were required to
pay income tax by their respective tax
authorities by the end of year 2016 and
whether the PRC Schools which enjoyed
such preferential tax treatments were
in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations in China;

o assessed any new policies, regulations
or rules that have been introduced by the
authorities up to the date of this report,
which might have impact on the tax position
of the PRC Schools;

° checked historical tax returns; and

° involved our internal tax experts to assist us
in analysing the preferential tax treatments
enjoyed by the PRC Schools and assessing
the adequacy of tax provisions.
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INDERPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

BUZHERS ()
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREXER

Gooawill impairment

The Group recorded a significant amount of
goodwill (RMB304 million) as at 31 December
2016 which is supported by an annual
impairment review. No impairment charge has
been recorded against goodwill in the current
year. Certain assumptions used in the impairment
review are subjective and involved significant
judgements and estimates, and they include:

o the future cash flow growth assumptions
used in the Group’s most recent budgets
for the next five years approved by
management, including future industry
development, pricing strategies, market
supply and demand, and gross margins;

° the growth rate used beyond the period
covered by the budgets; and

° the discount rate applied to future cash
flows.

The accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosure related to the impairment assessment
are included in notes 3 and 15 to the financial
statements.

BUZHENRS ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWERNEEFEREZER

In order to evaluate the impairment test carried
out by management and assess the value-in-use
of the cash-generating unit, we have performed
the following procedures:

o evaluated management’'s future cash flow
forecasts and the process by which they
were drawn up;

° assessed the actual performance in the year
against the prior year budgets to evaluate
historical forecasting accuracy;

o assessed the key assumptions by checking
to the historical trend and industry index;

° performed sensitivity analyses on the
forecasts;

o involved our internal valuation experts to
assist us in analysing the discount rate used
by comparing to the industry index; and

o evaluated the adequacy of the Group’s
disclosures regarding goodwill impairment
testing.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BIUZHERS (8)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Key audit matter

HREXER

Revenue recognition
B

The occurrence and completeness of the Group’s
revenue are of high inherent risk because of
the large volume of tuition and boarding fees
processed. In addition, tuition and boarding fees
paid in advance at or prior to the beginning of
each academic year are recognised as revenue
proportionately over the fiscal years covering
that academic year. Therefore, revenue may be
recorded in the incorrect period of the fiscal
year.

The accounting policy of revenue recognition and
disclosure of the amount of revenue are included
in notes 2.4 and 5 to the financial statements.
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BUZHENRS ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANFRNAEEBRELEER

As to our audit procedures, we have:

° tested the controls on the collection of
tuition and boarding fees and the controls
designed and applied by the Group
to calculate the deferred revenue and
corresponding amount of revenue;

o on a sample basis, tested the collection
of tuition fees, observed the attendance
records and checked the identities of
students for their existence;

° recalculated the amount of deferred revenue
and revenue recognised during the year;
and

° reconciled the number of newly enrolled
students during the year to the enrollment
approval by the relevant PRC education
authorities, and the total number of students
at the fiscal year end to the records on the
China Credentials Verification website.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BIUZHERS (8)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with IFRSs issued by
the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BIUZHERS (8)

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Hui Kin Fai, Stephen.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
14 April 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
moBaREMEERGER
S Eaio 12 Ao AL

Notes
Bt 5
REVENUE Ik &5 5 444,997 426,317
Cost of sales SHE R (186,391) (164,653)
Gross profit EA 258,606 261,664
Other income and gains PN 5 97,753 56,921
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO HMX (11,693) (8,297)
Administrative expenses TRFSE (86,301) (61,678)
Other expenses, net H AR SOF (3,745) (698)
Finance costs BhE B 6 (2,595) (305)
Share of loss of an associate DGEEE A REE (667) (928)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRB AT 7 251,358 246,679
Income tax expense FrS B 10 (1,609) (33,222)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEER 249,749 213,457
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ~ Hfh 2 EHias
Other comprehensive income to BRERIBEENHBEE
be reclassified to profit or loss in BaEaE 2K
subsequent periods o
Available-for-sale investments: A EIRE -
Change in fair value N EZ S 182 5,426
Reclassification adjustments for WO AR
gains on maturity included in Wit A= 2
profit or loss B H R (5,426) (6,757)
(5,244) (1,331)
Exchange differences on translation of & G537 2 & 3 =48
foreign operations (33,478) 27,924
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHME2EKE
FOR THE YEAR (38,722) 26,593
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEXHKREHE
FOR THE YEAR 211,027 240,050
Profit attributable to: NN
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEFSPN 11 243,431 203,207
Non-controlling interests FEVE R B 2 6,318 10,250
249,749 213,457
Total comprehensive income AT REEEEKEERE
attributable to: N
Owners of the parent ISYNEIEZZEPN 204,909 229,848
Non-controlling interests SRR 6,118 10,202
211,027 240,050
Earnings per share attributable to ISYNSIE=SEEESZSUN RMB RMB
ordinary equity holders of the parent: [E{REEF] : AR AR
Basic and diluted HARR#E 12 0.09 0.05

Q2

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited RE#HBEFFRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RSB IRREK
31 December 2016
M20164F 12 A31H

Notes 2016 2015
Lz RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - B RS 13 611,716 583,567
Prepaid land lease payments TR - i AH & FRIR 14 106,431 55,999
Goodwill Gl 15 303,937 303,937
Other intangible assets HtEEEE 16 2,682 2,418
Investments in associates ENRIRE 17 20,886 3,290
Available-for-sale investment AR ERE 18 6,000 6,000
Deposits for acquisition WiE t e AR RE
of land use rights 15,500 15,500
Total non-current assets EREBEELRE 1,067,152 970,711
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 19 1,260 1,184
Trade receivables E 5 R GIE 20 873 2,620
Prepayments, deposits TERRIE - e R
and other receivables b & IR 21 45,774 39,409
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 22 143,182 522,096
Investment deposits REFR 23 362,600 121,230
Loan to an associate M E A FIE R 17 707 —
Cash and bank balances e RIRITHEH 23 602,322 352,218
Total current assets MBEEBE 1,156,718 1,038,757
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Deferred revenue RIE W 24 263,163 246,471
Other payables and accruals H fth FE AT RIE S FE AT E A 25 110,729 85,445
Deferred income - current PRI WA — BN ER 28 7,488 5,195
Loans from the ultimate REFKIZERAFTNEK
holding company 26 125,413 —
Loans from related parties REBELTHNER 27 14,073 —
Tax payable JEfTRIE 77 17,046
Total current liabilities mENBEBRE 520,943 354,157
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 635,775 684,600
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEME
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,702,927 1,655,311
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

Q4

mEMBERREK(E)
31 December 2016
H2016F 12 A31H

Notes 2016 2015
ks RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Deferred income - non-current IEEUW A — JEBNER 28 132,015 116,725
Loans from the ultimate holding KB REEER AT ERK
company 26 — 115,095
Loans from related parties REBEFTHER 27 — 4,550
Total non-current liabilities R EERTE 132,015 236,370
Net assets BEFE 1,570,912 1,418,941
EQUITY Es
Equity attributable to owners of BRGHEA AR
the parent
Share capital & A 29 209 217
Reserves f#f 30 1,570,703 1,331,201
1,570,912 1,331,418
Non-controlling interests FEFE R — 87,523
Total equity RS 1,570,912 1,418,941
LI XUECHUN LAM NGAI LUNG
TEBR MEREE
Director Director
EE EZE
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CHANGES IN EQUITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

fmoEmBaR

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

At 1 January 2015 11551 A 1A 35 66,667 508,836 352,406 6,438 977,334 (711.664) 1840392 nmat 19
Profitfor the year EEEA - - - - - 203,207 - 203,201 10250 213457
Other comprehensive ncome for the year:  £EEB2ENE
Change n fair value of avallablefor-sale.~ TEREREZAFERY
invesiments - - - - 5,15 - - 5,15 1 5426
Release of reserve upon maturty RUHLEREHER
of available-for-sale investments BRGE - - - - (6,438) - - (6.438) (319) (6757)
Exchange differences relaed fo EREER)IZE,
foreign operations EizE - - - - - - 27794 2794 - 294
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £E2FEEE - - - - (1283 20320 N9 09848 10200 240080
Shares repurchased BEARR P (158) - (50883) - - (8313 53309 (738822 - (13882
Transfer from retained profts E2e0R g - - - 57479 - (57419 - - - -
At 31 December 2015 H5E12731A falk 66,667 ~ 409,885" 5,155" 639,925" 9569" 1331418 87503 1418941

®
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

Q6

fREERSBR(E)

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent
BOTHEARE

Available-for-
sale investment Exchange Non-
Share  Contributed Capital  Stafutory revaluation ~ Retained  fluctuation controlling
Note capital surplus reserve Teserve reserve profits reserve interests

1ft
HERE YE
hit B REBE  BRER  MERR  EMRE  ERER REGE & FERER
RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OOD  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTZ  ARBTR  ARBTR ARRTR ARBTR

Note 29 Note 30(o)  Note 30(c)

Kt s HiEde)
At 1 January 2016 HA16E1 718 il 6,667 - 409,885 5155 839925 0569 1331418 815 141804
Proftfor the year Ema - - - - - WA - U4 6318 249,749

Other comprehensive income for the year:  FREE2ENE :
Change n far value of available-or-sale ~ THHEREZATE

investments 2 - - - - 1 - - 11 4l 182
Release of reserve upon maturty RUBLEREEER
o available-for-sale investments G - - - - (5,155) - - (5,155) (2n) (5,426)
Exchange differences related fo BEREENER,
foreign operafions EiEE - - - - - - (33478)  (33478) - (33.478)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERZENEESE - - - - (5,04 243431 (33478) 204,909 618 211,007
Shares repurchased BEORA bis ®) - - - - (467) (381) (39,086 - (0,086
Transfer from retained profts EReleRl - - - 57,449 - (549 - - - -
Contribution from a shareholder* RREE - 93,641 - - - - 93,641 (93,641) -
At 31 December 2016 R16E12A31E 209 160,308* = 467,334* i1 967,240° (24,2901 1570912 - 1570912

N2016E9HA22H ERNSEEXBRA
AABSEEDNBREBBRESR Bt
WA SEENESGZERMEE TEE] - E

pS On 22 September 2016, the shareholders of Chongging Li'ang X
Industry Company Limited (“Li’ang Industry”) passed resolutions
pursuant to which (i) the articles of association of Li'ang Industry

were amended to the effect that Chongging Minsheng Education
Management Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, should be entitled to 100% of any dividend or
distribution to be paid by Li'ang Industry to its shareholders and
Mr. Li Xuechun (“Mr. Li"), the Company’s controlling shareholder
and the non-controlling shareholder of Li'ang Industry, should not
be entitled to any such dividend or distribution with effect from 10
August 2016; and (ii) Mr. Li relinquished his right to distribution
of assets of Li'ang Industry which may arise upon dissolution
of Li'ang Industry with effect from 10 August 2016. As a result,
with effect from 10 August 2016, no profit or retained earnings
of Li'ang Industry and its subsidiaries would be attributable to
Mr. Li and the non-controlling interests in Li'ang Industry and its
subsidiaries previously held by Mr. Li were derecognised as at 10
August 2016.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
RMB1,570,703,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB1,331,201,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

=y s =
TS IREMER
Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

Notes 2016 2015
k=3 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B A5 A g A 251,358 246,679
Adjustments for: AT ZIERE -
Finance costs BB KA 6 2,595 305
Share of loss of an associate D REE A FEE 667 928
Dividend income from an available-  A[ftEERER WA
for-sale investment 5,7 (360) (480)
Investment income from available- AHEEREREE
for-sale investments and FRERE WA
investment deposits 5,7 (25,372) (36,856)
Other interest income EFBHA 5,7 (1,500) (3,340)
Loss on disposal of items of property, BREW¥ - HENEE
plant and equipment, net HE BEFE 7 2,121 86
Government grants released BB 28 (39,687) (8,627)
Depreciation e 7,13 38,861 39,051
Recognition of prepaid land RIBN LA E R
lease payments 7,14 1,578 955
Amortisation of other Hithmp & Egs
intangible assets 7,16 868 738
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 W RIERE 7 1,841 1,934
Reversal of impairment of HAth FE UM FRIE B B R (B
other receivables 7 (565) —
232,405 241,373
Increase in inventories FEEm (76) (131)
(Increase)/decrease B 5 R FIA
in trade receivables (&), B (94) 347
Increase in prepayments, TERIE - e R
deposits and other receivables A e GRIB S AN (957) (2,369)
Increase in other payables H fth FE AT B S FE AT E A
and accruals 0 7,960 7,896
Increase in deferred revenue PR LU 25 18 0 16,692 15,321
Government grants received BT 45 Bh 28 57,270 64,317
Cash generated from operations KERMBHEE 313,200 326,754
Interest income received B F) BB 1,500 3,340
Income tax paid B FTEH (18,578) (16,970)
Net cash flows from operating KEEBMFIHEERE
activities FER 296,122 313,124
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‘ CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

Q8

mERERER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

Notes 2016 2015
B & RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARETT
Net cash flows from KEFBMFHEERE
operating activities R 296,122 313,124
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBMEHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant BEE%% BEN
and equipment HiBIEE (53,538) (58,417)
Proceeds from disposal of items of BEYE  BERE&E
property, plant and equipment B T3 R0R 312 249
Additions to other intangible assets  REBEEMER EE 16 (1,132) (632)
Additions to prepaid land FEfS L HoAE & FRIEIE N
lease payments 14 (52,933) (17,216)
Dividend income from an A EEREREKA
available-for-sale investment 360 480
Advance of a loan to a third party ME=FBNER — (30,000)
Redemption of investment deposits BOEEFHRL
and available-for-sale investments AEERE 2,196,990 2,139,890
Purchase of investment deposits BEREFREAH
and available-for-sale investments HERE (1,823,320)  (1,820,590)
Investment income from investment REGFRRAIHEEERE
deposits and available-for-sale Frig1 & A
investments 25,372 38,874
Advance of loans to associates R HYNCIE- NN E (17,771) —
Purchase of a shareholding U B Bt o B AR A
in an associate — (707)
Net cash flows from investing KREEBAFHEESRE
activities it 274,340 251,931
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBMEEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Shares repurchased B IR RN (59,056) (738,822)
New loans from related parties REBESRFIEER 8,639 4,546
New loans from the ultimate REZEZER QTR
holding company FIEER — 114,781
Prepayment for listing expenses TR IENRIA (2,501) —
Net cash flows used in MEFHMARERE
financing activities FRE (52,918) (619,495)

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited RE#HBEFFRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

meRERER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

Notes 2016 2015
k=3 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥FT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN RERREEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #gm/ ORd) R 517,544 (54,440)
Cash and cash equivalents FVHEe Rk
at beginning of year REEED 473,448 499,921
Effect of foreign exchange [ERSETE  FHE
rate changes, net (26,070) 27,967
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREER
AT END OF YEAR ReZEEY 964,922 473,448
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeREESEEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RO
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITHEER 23 602,322 352,218
Investment deposits with EERRGEHA AR
original maturity of less than —EAANTHREFR
three months when acquired 23 362,600 121,230
964,922 473,448
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NOTES TO

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited (the
“‘Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 13 December 2005 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the registered office of the Company is
PO Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street,
George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands.

The Company is an investment holding company.
During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in providing educational services in the

R E N

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A31 HILFE

RAREEER

REHEEHABR LA ERRE])
2005 12A13EBEEHE B SR
BRESESEMTIMAR L REREE
BRAF e RARIGEMMFER UL
APO Box 309GT, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands °

$ ARRERERAR - REAR - K

REIREK B AR (GBI ANEE])E
ERPEARKMBE(HE])RHH
B R -

People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

EEZRB/ARA ZERRA R R &R E
BRARABHREBR AT (RRBE
LRESEMENERAR) -

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and
the ultimate holding company of the Company is Honest
Cheer Investments Limited, which was incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

BRI B LA EH
ARBNMBAROFHBO TR

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’'s subsidiaries are as
follows:

Percentage of
effective equity
ordinary/ interests

Place of [ssued
incorporation/

registration registered attributable to
Company name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
Baiil e gsai BRIER/ KRTEEM
NGIEL B RS F B AR BERREL I F2XEKEY
Direct  Indirect
B %
Minsheng Education Cayman Islands US$50,000 100% — Investment holding
Company Limited HEHE 50,000 % 7T RAEER
REHBEERDA
Minsheng Education Cayman Islands US$50,000 100% — Investment holding
Services Company HEMS 50,000 % 7T RAEER
Limited
REHERBAERRA

100

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited RE#HBEFFRA A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
BRI EE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. AFAREBER(H)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) BRI E L Bl ZEF ()
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as RRARHMBRARNFBEO TR
follows: (continued) (&)

Minsheng Education Cayman Islands US$50,000 100% — Investment holding
Development Company FEHS 50,0003 T RAEER
Limited

REHEEREB AT

Minsheng Education Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100%  Investment holding
Development E 10,0007 7T RAEER
(Hong Kong)
Company Limited

REHBER(EH)
BRAT]

Hong Kong College of Hong Kong HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
Technology and B 18T RERER
Business Limited

BRIRERAR AT

Chongaing Minsheng The PRC / US$14,500,000 — 100%  Provision of education
Education Management Mainland China 14,500,000 % T management and
Company Limited BB KR services
(“Minsheng Education RUEHAE TR KRS
Management")

EERAYEERARAR
(TRAHEER])

® 07
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’'s subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

RAREEER(F)
BEHHE LAz ER ()
ARBOHEB AR FBE TR

(#)

Percentage of

Place of Issued effective equity
incorporation/ ordinary/ interests
registration registered attributable to
Company name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
Rl AN ai BEALE/ ALNAIEG
NGRS B R B AR BERARAELL B FEEXBED
Direct  Indirect
B I
Chongging Li'ang Industry The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Provision of education
Company Limited Mainland China  AK# 10,000,000 7T management and
ERFIREXARARA R/ B AR services
REHEER KRS
Chongging College of The PRC/ RMB55,000,000 — 100%  Provision of formal
Humanities, Science Mainland China  AK# 55,000,000 7T undergraduate and
and Technology S lE TN junior college education
BEEANBESZR services
RUIERARBEE R
REHERD
Pass College of Chongging ~ The PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Provision of formal
Technology and Mainland China  AR®5,000,0007C undergraduate and
Business University e TN junior college education
BEETHAZRNER services
RUETFRARBERER
AEHE R
Chongging Vocational The PRC/ RMB5,000,000 — 100%  Provision of junior
College of Applied Mainland China AR 5,000,0007T college education
Technology B,/ AR services
BEERARMBESR REREHE RS
Chongaing Yujinggang The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100% Investment in education
Education Investment Mainland China  AK# 50,000,000 7T projects
Company Limited B R REHAREE

BEREARBHEREFRAR

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited RE#HBEFFRA A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’'s subsidiaries are as

follows: (continued)

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016

HZE2016F 12 A31 BILFE

RAREEER(F)
BB LAz ER ()
ARBOH B AR FHBE TR

(#)

Percentage of

Place of Issued effective equity
incorporation/ ordinary/ interests
registration registered attributable to
Company name and business share capital the Company Principal activities
Rl AN ai BEALE/ ALNAIEG
NGRS B R B AR BRBEL P FEEXBED
Direct  Indirect
B I

Chongging Hechuan The PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Provision of diseases
Renwen Hospital Mainland China AR 50,000,0007T diagnosis and
Company Limited B,/ B treatment services

BERINAXBRERRAA REFRRZHNLERS

Chongging Zhiyuan Times The PRC / RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Provision of
Education Management Mainland China A% 10,000,000 7 university logistics
Company Limited B, R management services

EEBERRYEERERAA REERBYREE RS

Chongqing Bozhi Education ~ The PRC / US$9,000,000 — 100%  Provision of education
Services Company Limited  Mainland China 9,000,000 % 7T management and
(“Bozhi Education”) R/ AR services

BEREEHEREAERLA REHEERRRS
([EE#E])

Chongging Li'ang The PRC/ RMB30,000,000 — 100%  Provision of university
Education Services Mainland China AR 30,000,000 7C and college logistics
Company Limited BB services

ERFIBHERBERAR REBERRDRRYE

Chongaing Pass Education ~ The PRC / RMB300,000 — 100%  Provision of university
Services Company Limited  Mainland China AR 300,0007T and college logistics

BEERIMERBERLA RE/ REARE services

REAERHFRR

MR
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
R E e ERC )

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. AFAREBER(H)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BERENE L Bl ZEF ()
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as RRARHMBRARNFBEO TR
follows: (continued) (&)

Inner Mongolia Fengzhou The PRC/ RMB4,000,000 — 100%  Provision of junior
Vocational College Mainland China A& 4,000,000 7C college education
(Qingcheng Branch) B, B AR services

AERLEMNBESR REXEHE RS
(BH k)

Chongging Huizhi The PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Provision of university
Education Services Mainland China  AK# 10,000,000 7T logistics services
Company Limited B, B AR REREYTRE

EEEEHERBERAA

Beijing Minsheng Time The PRC / RMB10,000,000 — 100%  Provision of education
Education Technology Mainland China A& # 10,000,000 7T counselling services
Company Limited R B AR RIHA B AR

TRREBEREEREK
BRAR

104 ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
BRI EE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1. AFAREBER(H)

Information about subsidiaries (continued) BRI E L Bl ZEF ()
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as RRARHMBRARNFBEO TR
follows: (continued) (&)

Laoling Chengyue The PRC / RMB50,000,000 — 100% Investment in
Education Investment Mainland China N education and health
Management Company & /FEAE 50,000,0007T care programs
Limited RENHE RMREIER

LREAVHEREERE
BRAT

Laoling Minsheng The PRC / RMB30,000,000 — 100% Provision of
Secondary Vocational Mainland China ARE secondary vocational
School R/ B A 30,000,0007T education and

LREREBEFEZEER technical training

REPEHEHE R
Esq izl

Except for Minsheng Education Management and Bozhi BRTHRZABIEBELEZREHE

Education, which were established as wholly-foreign- EERBEHEIN - LFAEOHRE

invested enterprises, all the above PRC companies NEIKL BB E R -

were established as domestic-invested enterprises.

® 105
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and interpretations) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
available-for-sale investments, which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2016. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

21 mEEE

% R T IR R B R B S R S
A(TEIR M BHREER D(BERE
BIFR i s R - BFR SRR
Fe((EReFEREEg RMHZ
BIRR & 5 R ([ BFR g 5228 |) K2
B)  BAAREGTRAIRTEARK
Iz HBEREMMBMSE  BrE T A
EREDRVFEFTEN  ZFVHR
RIVERAEOEREL - ZF W5
KIPAARBTAREDZS - R3E
ZEFH BRAMELEANERA
EREONTAER -

HEEE

BAYBRREEARALENBAR
BIRE E2016F12A31B It FE
MPBHRE - HMBATNBEARFH
BERMEEHNER  BIELETESE
B EAEEREHHREE ANR
HEmMESKEEES TR - A
AAREEHZWEEHAEEHE -
BAgRBEEWIRNE S RE D (10
MAKLBEGLTERRENIEREIEE S
EHEHMR AN MEEF BN
o

ERARRHEEREES —FUATHRE
RSB ER () - B
CEEFHERTHWRE T HE®E
HEEERMEMABEERIER &
7

(a) HEHEHRETEMEEFFEANG
M2 HE

(b) AEMELHLBEMELNER
54

(c) AKENBREENBERTE -
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

21 RBEEE(E)

HERE(HE)

P /B8 2~ ) B B T R T IR IR B AR R )
MR HwEHE - KA B
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
standards for the first time for the current year’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10,  /nvestment Entities: Applying
IFRS 12 and IAS 28 the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to IFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
Amendments to IAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and IAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation
Amendments to IAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and IAS 41

Amendments to IAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number
2012-2014 Cycle of IFRSs

The application of these new and revised standards
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and position for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

108
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs

The Group has not applied the following new and

revised IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS 9

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

IFRS 16

Amendments to IAS 7

Amendments to |1AS 12

Amendments to IAS 40

Amendments to IFRSs

IFRIC 22

Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions?

Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments ?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Clarifications to IFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

Leases?®

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses'

Transters of Investment Property ?

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle®

Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration?

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

110

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

23

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

be determined

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9,
bringing together all phases of the financial instruments
project to replace IAS 39 and all previous versions of
IFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement, impairment and hedge
accounting. The Group expects to adopt IFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group is currently assessing the
impact of the standard upon adoption and expects
that the adoption of IFRS 9 will have an impact on the
classification and measurement of the Group’s financial
assets.

23 CEMERBERZERMBREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSs (continued)

IFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account
for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. The principles in IFRS
15 provide a more structured approach for measuring
and recognising revenue. The standard also introduces
extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in
contract asset and liability account balances between
periods and key judgements and estimates. The
standard will supersede all current revenue recognition
requirements under IFRSs. The Group expects to adopt
IFRS 15 on 1 January 2018. Based on the preliminary
analysis, the Group anticipates that the adoption of
IFRS 15 in the future is unlikely to have significant
impacts on the recognition of service income from the
provision of education and boarding services.

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases.
For lessee accounting, the standard introduces a
single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee
to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with
a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. A lessee is required to recognise
a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments. For
lessor accounting, the standard substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17.
Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases
as operating leases or finance leases, and to account
for those two types of leases differently. The Group
expects to adopt IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019. The total
operating lease commitments of the Group in respect
of leased premises as at 31 December 2016 were
RMB536,000 (2015: RMB182,000). With the recognition
exemption applicable to short-term leases, the Group
does not expect significant impacts on the financial
position and financial performance of the Group when
adopting IFRS 16.

2.3

MB KM ()
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in consolidated profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associates, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over
the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the
carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) and
part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is
included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures certain available-for-sale
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability,
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

2.4 FESTHRBEE)

REBEEHREE(HE)

WEES EERSELBEM(HIBLE
HEEBEMAR)  MZBAEF IS EK
WHE  BIRAETF LS8 BT
PEEBERNBESTAZERLDN
BREE RZEBELAELMNEENE
EHEBHALEERESEEEN
HREBHEDFTE ©

AFEiHE
AREANERERALT @I RS
FAHLERE - AFENTHE R

ERFTEAHETHEFRZFHE
BEMEKDSEEEEMINNE
e RFENBELEEELEZES
BENRINZEEXABNETENS
(MEXZEMS  AAHZEESXEE
BTG ETME - REBEN
AR RZEEM S HEAE N TIHHET
X% BESBBENAFEDLEKAT
B2EEREEXRABETCERMAN
REsrE @ WREMBS2HEEEAY
RELBEMZRITE °

#%@ﬁ?%“?ﬁﬁ%’éﬁg*

L2RESARENREEAZEE
FRKLBEMNROEN  BREES
TR AHAREEMREERZEE
BT 52 EE MESLBEMNEEES

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &g

115



‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHRHEHE)

116

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)
(if)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;
and the sponsoring employers of the post-
employment benefit plan;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Related parties (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity): and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

2.4% 10 6.3%
9.5% to 23.8%
9.5% to 31.7%
9.5% to 31.7%

Buildings

Motor vehicles

Furniture and equipment
Computer equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress mainly represents buildings
under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Computer software

Purchased computer software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the straight-line
basis over its estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
investments. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in other income
and gains in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in finance
costs for loans and in administrative expenses for
receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in an unlisted equity
investment and banks’ wealth management products.
Equity investments classified as available for sale are
those which are neither classified as held for trading
nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.
Banks’ wealth management products in this category
are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time and which may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in market
conditions.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or
loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in other income, or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, when
the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends
earned whilst holding the available-for-sale financial
investments are reported as interest income and
dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as other income in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)
Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

When the fair value of the unlisted equity investment
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investment is stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability and
intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over
the remaining life of the investment using the effective
interest rate. Any difference between the new amortised
cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over
the remaining life of the asset using the effective
interest rate. If the asset is subsequently determined
to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed
from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses whether impairment exists individually
for financial assets that are individually significant, or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not,
it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

The amount of any impairment loss identified is
measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not yet been incurred). The present value of
the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e., the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be
accrued on the reduced carrying amount using the rate
of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has
been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
other expenses in the statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHRHEHE)

128

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, or on a derivative asset
that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses
on these assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in profit or loss, is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments (continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available
for sale, objective evidence would include a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment
below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss - is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity instruments classified as
available for sale are not reversed through profit or
loss. Increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.

In the case of debt instruments classified as available
for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried at amortised cost.
However, the amount recorded for impairment is the
cumulative loss measured as the difference between
the amortised cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income
continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying
amount of the asset using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. The interest income
is recorded as part of finance income. Impairment
losses on debt instruments are reversed through profit
or loss if the subsequent increase in fair value of the
instruments can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as loans and borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and in the case of loans and borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include other payables
and accruals and loans from the ultimate holding
company and related parties.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the year, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of each reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FESTHRHEHE)

134

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is
credited to a deferred income account and is released
to profit or loss over the expected useful life of the
relevant asset by equal annual instalments or deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(a)

service income includes tuition fees and boarding
fees of colleges and high schools of the Group.

The tuition fees from the schools of the Group
are received in advance at the beginning of each
academic year. Revenue is recognised after the
price is fixed or determinable, and services are
provided.

Tuition and boarding fees are generally received
by colleges and high schools in advance prior to
the beginning of each academic year, and are
initially recorded as deferred revenue. Tuition and
boarding fees are recognised proportionately over
the relevant period of the applicable program.
The portion of tuition and boarding payments
received from students but not earned is recorded
as deferred revenue and is reflected as a current
liability as such amounts represent revenue that
the Group expects to earn within one year. The
academic year of the Group’s schools is generally
from September to June of the following year.

interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition;

rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms; and

dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Employee benefits

Pension schemes

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. The subsidiaries operating in
Mainland China are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.

2.4 FESTHRBEE)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The Company incorporated in the Cayman Islands uses
the US dollar as its functional currency. As the Group
mainly operates in Mainland China, RMB is used as
the presentation currency of the Company. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of the Company and certain overseas subsidiaries,
which use currencies other than RMB as their functional
currencies, are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income are
translated into RMB at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
year, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating unit to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. As at
31 December 2016, the carrying amount of goodwill
was RMB303,937,000 (2015: RMB303,937,000). Further
details are given in note 15 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of the
year. The non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts
may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when the
carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit using key assumptions such
as budgeted sales amounts and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. As at 31 December 2016, the total
carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid land lease payments that were subject
to impairment tests was RMB129,113,000 (2015:
RMB115,954,000).
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of loan to an associate

The Group estimates the provision for impairment of
the loan to Hong Kong Nang Yan College of Higher
Education Limited by assessing its recoverability based
on credit history and expected future cash flows of
that associate. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. Provision is applied to the loan to an
associate where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balance may not be collectible. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will affect the carrying amount of loan
to an associate and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the provision at the end of the year. Further
details of the loan to an associate are set out in note 17
to the financial statements.

Fair values of certain available-for-sale investments

Certain available-for-sale investments have been
valued based on the expected cash flows discounted
at current rates applicable for items with similar terms
and risk characteristics. This valuation requires the
Group to make estimates about expected future cash
flows, credit risk, volatility and discount rates, and
hence they are subject to uncertainty. The fair values
of such available-for-sale investments at 31 December
2016 was RMB143,182,000 (2015: RMB522,096,000).
Further details are included in note 22 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Current and deferred tax

Significant judgement is required in interpreting the
relevant tax rules and regulations so as to determine
whether the Group is subject to corporate income tax.
This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions
and may involve a series of judgements about future
events. New information may become available that
causes the Group to change its judgement regarding
the adequacy of the tax liabilities. Such changes to tax
liabilities will impact tax expense in the period that such
determination is made. Further details of the current
and deferred tax are set out in note 10 to the financial
statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
education services in the PRC.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal
reporting about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources to segments and
to assess their performance. The information reported
to the directors, who are the chief operating decision
makers, for the purpose of resource allocation and
assessment of performance does not contain discrete
operating segment financial information and the
directors reviewed the financial results of the Group
as a whole. Therefore, no further information about
operating segments is presented.

Geographical information

During the year, the Group operated within one
geographical segment because all of its revenue was
generated in the PRC and over 99% of its long-term
assets/capital expenditure were located/incurred in the
PRC. Accordingly, no geographical segment information
is presented.
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

REDHER (R
EHETEEFHEH

RER - TR E—FPRHNRSE
RSB AR 10% A £ o

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4.
Information about major customers

No service provided to a single customer accounted for
10% or more of the total revenue of the Group during
the year.

Wz - HAWA R W
Wetht5 8 B IR TR AR TS VB (E -

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue represents the value of services rendered
during the year.

BRda - EUA R m o i an

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

follows: N
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
Revenue &
Tuition fees 2% 412,526 395,140
Boarding fees FEE 32,471 31,177
444,997 426,317
Other income and gains H A & Wz
Dividend income from an Al SR E R BB
available-for-sale investment 360 480
Investment income from AHEERENEE
available-for-sale investments T2 B WA
and investment deposits 25,372 36,856
Other interest income HaF 2 U A 1,500 3,340
Net rental income e WA FEE 1,194 1,249
Government grants (note 28) AT 6 B (5T 28)
- Related to assets — B EMRB 6,331 3,996
- Related to income — AR 33,356 4,631
Exchange gain, net bE H s F 5 27,097 2,653
Others Hh 2,543 3,716
97,753 56,921

BT 475 B B L I A B SR B R
EREXELNEEERMEMERES
MBI BB RE - B RS R
B R A 48 B 0 8 1 ) B 228 ) R 22 P16
R AREIR -

The government grants are related to the subsidies
received from the local government for the purpose
of compensating the operating expenses arising from
the schools’ teaching activities and expenditures on
teaching facilities. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies relating to such government grants
recognised.
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FINANCE COSTS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

BE A

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
INL B ARETT

Interest on loans from the ultimate
holding company and related parties

KB REIEBA R K
BRSO ERAF R

2,595 305

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’'s profit before tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

BR L AT 3

BB BATEF TG (5EA) A
TRIEEE :

Depreciation

Amortisation of other
intangible assets

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

Recognition of prepaid land
lease payments

Auditor’s remuneration

Employee benefit expense
(excluding directors’
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions

(defined contribution schemes)
Foreign exchange differences, net

Impairment of trade receivables
Impairment of other receivables
Recovery of other receivables
Dividend income from an
available-for-sale investment
Investment income from
available-for-sale investments
and investment deposits
Other interest income
Loss on disposal of items
of property, plant and
equipment, net
Donation expense

e
H #8714 B 5

rEHENRERES
HERIAN LA & 5KIE

ZEEN B 2
EERANFEZ (T8
E=ME (M) -

TEERHE

RS F B
(S E S FREEl)

FIEH ER

B 5 e W IR R E

H{th & W R IR R E

Ui 1 EL A & U5k TR

A HERERBUA

AfHERERKRE
TFRRE I EBA

H A A B HA
REME  BEK
REEE BEFE

B

Notes 2016 2015
Mo et RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T

13 38,861 39,051
16 868 738
4,711 3,223

14 1,578 955
4,994 154

88,583 79,996

22,477 17,318
(27,097) (2,653)

20 1,841 1,934
21 435 —
(1,000) —
(360) (480)
(25,372) (36,856)
(1,500) (3,340)

2,121 86

691 230
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EE&
Details of directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed BELETR FEERIRMGEHNSE
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), 383(1)(a) ~ (b) * (c) (N EX A AR
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance AlE2nH(EBEZRINCEHE
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BIBRBCAFEEEMESOT ¢

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TR ARET T
Fees we — —
Other emoluments: HEAil< -
Salaries, allowances and benefits e R NEYA TR
in kind 3,383 2,730
Discretionary bonuses Y15 AT 777 —
Pension scheme contributions IRREETEIHER 11 —
4,171 2,730
Executive directors HITEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Year ended in kind contributions Discretionary Total

31 December 2016 e RER Rike bonuses remuneration
HZ2016F12A31 BLLEE EYFIR HE 5 B HedE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR AR¥ETR

Mr. Li Xuechun FERLE 975 - - 975
Ms. Zhang Weiping REFRL 1,653 - 465 2,118
Mr. Zuo Yichen TRRAE
(appointed on 23 August 2016) (R 20168 A 23 HEZR(L) 517 6 — 523
Mr. Lam Ngai Lung WRELE
(appointed on 23 August 2016) (201658 A 23 HEZ(E) 238 5 312 555
3,383 11 777 4171
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8.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

MBHRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

8. EEME#H)

Mr. Li Xuechun FERESE 983 — 983
Ms. Zhang Weiping REFZL 1,747 — 1,747
Mr. Tsang Kwong Yue, Tsang Kwong Yue, — — —
Conrad (resigned on Conrad %4
6 October 2015) (R 2015510 8
6 REHE)
Ms. Wanlin Liu (resigned Wanlin LiuZ 4 — — —
on 29 December 2015) (R 2015512 8
29 HEHE)
2,730 — 2,730

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year.

RER MEBEESHERXARBREL

fa] S B0 22 B o
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2016 include three (2015:
two) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2015: three) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the
Group, during the year are as follows:

IEEEFHNES

HZE2016F 12 A31HIEFE » A&
BRazeHiEES2E=4(2015
F:MB)ES  HEESFHIFBEE
REXKHFs  REBIBRESHME
(20154 : =R )BEIEARSKBEEEINIE
FETHRABNES HBES & B
BT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT

Salaries, allowances and e I REDN =
benefits in kind 1,232 1,542
Pension scheme contributions RIKNEETEIMHER 23 15
1,255 1,557

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within
the following band is as follows:

FMNFTIBENIFESTRIFER
TBRABNESHHMEEHBLT :

2010 IRENE

Nil to HK$1,000,000

£ % 1,000,000%& 7T

2 3

During the year, no highest paid employees waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration and no remuneration
was paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

REAR - BESSHHEEREXRF
BHEEMAGHH - ALK B INER %
hEs&mHMEE X NBMEERMA
RS SR I A SR B 1R 1Y 2R Y =X
Bi(E -
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions
in which members of the Group are domiciled and
operate.

The Company, Minsheng Education Company Limited,
Minsheng Education Services Company Limited and
Minsheng Education Development Company Limited,
which were incorporated in the Cayman Islands, are not
subject to income tax.

Minsheng Education Development (Hong Kong)
Company Limited and Hong Kong College of
Technology and Business Limited, which were
incorporated in Hong Kong, were subject to profits tax
at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group had no assessable profits derived from or
earned in Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law and
the respective regulations, except for the preferential
tax rate of 15% under the Western Development Tax
Incentive Scheme available to Chongging Li'ang
Education Services Company Limited and Chongqging
Pass Education Services Company Limited, the
companies of the Group which operate in Mainland
China are subject to Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at a
rate of 25% on their respective taxable income.

10.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

FriG®

REEARBARENX B QR FIER
REzarEREE 2 GNIRER
B PTISH o

AneE - REBEERAR  REH
ERBERAARREHEERER
REAHRRASESEMKY - HEAH
FrSH -

REHBER(BE)ERARALEE
TRHERARABREBEIMMAL -
HERBBELE ZEERBOENFR
A2 16.5% MR KGR AFH o

RPN SR [ 30 8 B8 B A S IR
I ERTEHN - BULF AL EEHE
BRSTHEE -

REFBEMBHELRBEES  BE
ENSHRERBERLENEEIR
HERBHER D FR ZH 870 %
MR ET &I TR 156% BB X -
AREBBETRAPBEAMLENLDFA
B B B BRI AR 25% B R B
EEMBHR(TEERFH])
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

According to the Implementation Rules for the Law
for Promoting Private Education (the “Implementation
Rules”), private schools, whether requiring reasonable
returns or not, may enjoy preferential tax treatments.
Private schools for which the school sponsors do not
require reasonable returns are eligible to enjoy the
same preferential tax treatment as public schools.
The Implementation Rules provide that the relevant
authorities under the State Council may introduce
preferential tax treatments and related policies
applicable to private schools requiring reasonable
returns. During the year and up to the date of this
report, no separate policies, regulations or rules have
been introduced by the authorities in this regard.
In accordance with the historical tax returns filed
to the relevant tax authorities and the confirmation
obtained therefrom, the Group’s schools which require
reasonable returns did not pay corporate income tax
and had enjoyed the preferential corporate income tax
exemption treatments in 2016.

As a result, no income tax expense was recognised for
the Group's schools for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: nil).

The major components of the income tax expense for
the Group are as follows:

10. FREH (&)

BE(RBABBEREZEBIGHIIE
FEMRB ) - RIFEBR T B SKIE
EEERES HAZZEERE -
HEATNERKRESER R RITE
R ROEZEZEQPEBREZHFU
BEIEK - BHEEOIRTE - BIHE 8
FEPFIA S E EKMEEEEHRAR
MERER OB WEBBUR RABK
K-RFARBEEARESEEH &
HERATE L B E B BRI  SER KA
Bl o BBMEBEHGEEBEEIN BT
TR R R E DA R B VS R RERR - AN
EBEEXRESAERHER L2016
FWARBAPEFAERE ZZEED
¥SHiFS -

It B £2016F 12 A318H It F
B AEBMNERITEMSHAX
(20154 : #&) -

AEBZFAEHAXOEZELH WM
I

BIEA — A Bl it
FAEE

Current — Mainland China
Charge for the year

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AR®TT
1,609 33,222
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the countries (or
jurisdictions) in which the Company and the majority of
its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

10. FREH (&)

RAARBEREANBOMBAREE
ZER(HBDEER) EERKRTE
ZBEHAENERz MIAERRRE
R R ECRAER 2 WRIAT ¢

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARETT

Profit before tax B 54 A g A 251,358 246,679

Tax at the statutory tax rates BETMEGTE 2B 62,840 62,129
Lower tax rate enacted BB R

by local authority (1,548) (1,067)

Income not subject to tax ARG A (60,588) (28,184)

Expenses not deductible for tax A B X 323 65

Tax losses not recognised KRR 2 IS E 12 582 279

1,609 33,222

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is
effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax
rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by those subsidiaries established
in Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

BRIBERRAPEMERE - EPEAH
R RINERECERIINEREES
KA B AN 10%TEIR - Z BT
B2008F1 A1HEAR  BEAR
2007 F 12 A31 A& EF| o fw+ E
Rt B AN 5 B & AT A [ 2 [
AIERBIEL - AT RASEATE
MK - AEEmNE F BAREKA
10% - At - XREBEBEBEARFTH
7 35X ST HY B /B 2 &) Bt 2008 £ 1 A 1
B ELXNEFFTD RS ERTE
FL o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

10.

INCOME TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2016, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China (2015: nil). In the opinion
of the directors, the Group’s unremitted earnings
will be retained in Mainland China for the expansion
of the Group’s operation, so it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately
RMB878,470,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB748,010,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of RMB314,000 (2015:
RMB241,000), which are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. The Group
also had tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB6,708,000 (2015: RMB6,818,000), that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

10. FREH (&)

R20165F12HA31H  N&E E I &
SR H B AR ST 2 BB R B 7B 85 4R
%E?D@%’EﬁfﬁliﬁﬂﬂFEMNﬂE?D
HERELERHIB(20156F « &) o
ERE KEIE’J%/IEHWWHW”
BABAREREE BRZEHRBA
AIRA RERDIKEBRAFHKE T
Ko MR20165F 128318 - B R
B EREmMELEHEBEE &R
BRANEREBRBEHOABAR
# 878,470,000 (20154F : A R ¥
748,010,000 7T) °

PN/ Tlﬂﬂx?ﬁ/fiﬁﬂi N RS
T2

R2016 128310 » REBHEEFH
EEMBIEEEAARK314,0007T
(20154 : AR¥241,0007T) » A&
PREFF AR SE H IR BB AR Al e B
BEFRBGF - AEBEHRBEAME
EMRIEEE A AR 6,708,000 7T
(20154 : AR#6,818,0007T) * A
BHREEEEN —ZE2RAFREM ' 7]
ARIEEABERT AN - ARZE
WEBAREEAEE —FBIERE - AR
AR RER A R EHR R S B 1R A
ERBAA - M EHZEEEER
BEFRTBEE -
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11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the year (2015: nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent for the year ended 31 December
2016, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,632,246,628 (2015: 4,252,234,282) in issue
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole
shareholder of the Company on 5 July 2016, each
share of the Company with a par value of US$0.001
in the authorised share capital was subdivided into
100 shares of par value of US$0.00001 each (the
“Share Subdivision”), such that immediately following
the Share Subdivision, the authorised share capital
of the Company became US$50,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 shares of par value of US$0.00001 each.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year ended 31 December 2016,
adjusted retrospectively for the Share Subdivision.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015.

11.

12.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

RS

ESZTEERHEBFE LM EMARE
(20154 : #)

BAREERESFEARLERA
A

FREXRRFTDIRIEE E2016F
12ANNBLEHFENBAR LT AR
EmFE ARG R REE2016F
12A31BILFE BT T M INE
15 812,632,246,628 I (2015 4F :
4,252 234,282 f% )5t E -

BIEARQFME—RER20165F7 A
S5EMEMREZSR  AQRVEATRA
i 5 % T {E0.001 3 7T &9 % 10 3F 48
/100 P& 5 i% ™ {5 0.00001 = T i% 15
(BRI ]) - BE R ZEE IR IF A
% RRBIHETE R ARE 550,000
7T * 9 /A5,000,000,000 i & I E E
0.00001 EJTHIRED °

BRETENETBRMNETHSAEE
2016 F 12 A31HILFEMNDHITE
BERHE  EBTEINETEREE
BB DIRETEBAE -

#H 220164 K2015F12 8318 1k
FE > AEEVEDBTETHEL
B o
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12. BRAREEREGRAEARLERE

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued) ()
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per EREAREERTN 2FTEIRE

share are based on:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREBTFT
Earnings 27
Profit attributable to owners AR ESRERK
of the parent, used in the basic DRty | A S /NC]
and diluted earnings per share B A& A
calculation 243,431 203,207
Shares gl
Weighted average number of ordinary FARFESRERL
shares in issue during the year HERMNZEA
used in the basic and diluted BETLER
earnings per share calculation T2k 2,632,246,628 4,252,234,282

152

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited RE#HBEFFRA A



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE

Motor Furnitureand ~ Computer Construction

Buildings

g7
RMB'000
ARBTR

vehicles
nE
RMB'000
ARETR

equipment
BHREE

RMB’000
ARET T

equipment
LR
RMB’000
ARET T

in progress
kRIE
RMB'000
ARBT R

Total

st
RMB’000
ARET T

31 December 2016 2016512A31A
At 1 January 2016: R2016F1A1A
Cost WA 532,707 17,162 239,683 41,384 16,622 847,558
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (87,346) (1419)  (138,172) (31,054) - (263,991)
Net carrying amount FHE 445,361 9,743 101,511 10,330 16,622 583,567
At 1 January 2016, R2016F1A18 -

net of accumulated depreciation B Z:HiTE 445,361 9,743 101,511 10,330 16,622 53,567
Additions AE 11,635 125 25,608 2,008 30,067 69,443
Disposals tee (141) (305) (1,387) - - (2,433)
Depreciation provided EREERE(ET)

during the year (note 7) (15,288) (1,396) (19,306) (2,87) - (38,861)
Transfers g% 29,826 - - - (29,826) -
At 31 December 2016, R2016E 127318

net of accumulated depreciation MR E5E 470,793 8,167 106,426 9,467 16,863 611,716
At 31 December 2016 R2016% 127318
Cost A 573,029 17,146 246,236 38,101 16,863 891,375
Accumulated depreciation ZitHE (102,236) (8,979)  (139,810) (28,634) - (279,659)
Net carrying amount FREE 470,793 8,167 106,426 9,467 16,863 611,716
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

154

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. % BERRHE(E

Motor  Furniture and Computer ~ Construction
Buildings vehicles  equipment  equipment in progress Total
BT AE GRREE gk fRIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2015 20155128318
At 1 January 2015: R15F1A18
Cost B 513,852 16,584 204,555 39,500 3,637 798,128
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (72.729) (6,986)  (118,738) (27.738) - (226,191)
Net carrying amount BEFE 441,123 9,598 105,817 11,762 3,637 571,937
At 1 January 2015, Ro015E1 A1
net of accumulated depreciation B EFHTE 441123 9,598 105,817 11762 3,637 571,937
Additions AE 1,137 1,671 15,149 1,889 31170 51,016
Disposals hE (130) (199) (6) - - (335)
Depreciation provided ERERENET)
during the year (note 7) (14,954) (1,327) (19,449) (3,321) — (39,051)
Transfers &5 18,185 - - - (18,185) -
At 31 December 2015, R20155 128318
net of accumulated depreciation  MBZ:HE 445 361 9,743 101,511 10,330 16,622 583,567
At 31 December 2015 R2015E 124318
Cost BA 532,707 17,162 239,683 41,384 16,622 847,558
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (87,346) (7,419) (138,172) (31,054) — (263,991)
Net carrying amount BEFE 445,361 9,743 101,511 10,330 16,622 583,567

The Group’s buildings are situated in Mainland China.

Certificates of ownership in respect of certain buildings
of the Group located in Chongqing, the PRC with a total
net carrying amount of approximately RMB17,471,000 at
31 December 2016 (2015: RMB38,740,000) have not yet
been issued by the relevant PRC authorities. As at the
end of the year, the directors were still in the process
of obtaining these certificates.

AREB 2 BFURPEAM -

FERE P B RS A R B AN E LR A
REBECETEFZMEESE %5
BFR20165F 12 A31 B 2 REFE
wEY) B AN R¥17,471,000 7T(2015
F: AR%38,740,0007T) « N H @
HIEA  EFMEREDNEXEME
EENEH -
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14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

14, ANLTEE

Notes 2016 2015
k=3 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREBTFT
Carrying amount at beginning REAHREE

of year 57,271 41,010
Additions =T 52,933 17,216
Recognised during the year MRERNERMET)

(note 7) (1,578) (955)
Carrying amount at end of year RERWIRHEE 108,626 57,271
Current portion included FFATENREIE - &

in prepayments, deposits K Ath fE Y k1A

and other receivables 8 BN ERER > 21 (2,195) (1,272)
Non-current portion JERNEREL 7 106,431 55,999

These pieces of leasehold lands are located in Mainland

% EHE AR B A IA R EE

China and are held under long term leases. HFEE o
GOODWILL 15. &HE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Cost: B :
At beginning and end of year REIRFR 303,937 303,937
Accumulated impairment: ZEHRE :
At beginning and end of year RERER — —
Net carrying amount: BRMEEE -
At beginning and end of year REIRFER 303,937 303,937
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

15.

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combination is
allocated to the cash-generating unit of Chongging
College of Humanities, Science and Technology.

The recoverable amount of the Chongging College of
Humanities, Science and Technology cash-generating
unit has been determined based on a value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

15.

BE (&)
2 el (5 R

BREBAMHDNSZAEENETE
BAXMKBR ZIRGELEN -

ERAXMRERZREELENZ
Al Bl & B RIEE R EERE A
BE %t B AR REEE
it BORE T B 2 A TR E P
EZBRERETAR - LT REEER
MMELBR 2 RETRR A SR EEITR
BEAHNSEE MR

2015

Sales amount (% annual growth rate) $HE&%8

(HFEEERXZADL)
EME(EREZBDLL)

i o
Gross margins (% of revenue

Long term growth rate REjEE R
Pre-tax discount rate IR RS

Budgeted sales amounts — The budgeted sales amounts
are based on the historical data and management’s
expectation on the future market.

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins
is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements, and expected
market development.

Long term growth rate — The long term growth rate
is based on the historical data and management’s
expectation on the future market.

Pre-tax discount rate — The pre-tax discount rate
reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit, which
is determined using the capital asset pricing model
with reference to the beta coefficient and debt ratio of
certain publicly listed companies conducting business
in the PRC education industry.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market
development of the cash-generating unit and discount
rate are consistent with external information sources.

5% 5%
60% 60%
3% 2%
15.9% 16.5%

BEHESHE REHERDNERE
SEBUE KRB YRR T IS TR
BE -

BEEHE - BB ANEEE
S ) B (L FR O 8 B R TR 4F 2
RIS T ERIE - Y EEM
EE RS REEL L -

EEEEE - REERDNENES
BB R R E R RIS BT

;’Eo

T8 AT BRER & — Bt Al AG 38 R [ ik 225 8
BUMEBNSERR - HERAELER
ETEENT2EERRALRETE
FEHETERREBNHAMLTA
ANBERERE

REMREELEMNT ISR NI
RENESATZ2HREME THEER
SNERE B RRAR — 2K
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

16. H\EREE

Computer
software
BB
RMB’000
ARETT
31 December 2016 201612831 H
Cost at 1 January 2016, 201661 A1 HAIKA -
net of accumulated amortisation bR 25T EEE 2,418
Addition hE 1,132
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) R 8B (FisE7) (868)
At 31 December 2016 7K 20164F 12 A 31 H 2,682
At 31 December 2016 R 2016412 A 31 H
Cost B 6,090
Accumulated amortisation ESg: 3 (3,408)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,682
31 December 2015 201512831 H
Cost at 1 January 2015, 20151 A1 BRI -
net of accumulated amortisation B R 5T 5 2,524
Addition N 632
Amortisation provided during the year (note 7) G REEEBE (M35 7) (738)
At 31 December 2015 R2015412 A31H 2,418
At 31 December 2015 7K 2015%F 12 A 31 H
Cost %N 5,059
Accumulated amortisation REHEE Y (2,641)
Net carrying amount BRANFAE 2,418
17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 17. REFERTNKRE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® T AREFT
Share of net assets DIEEEFE 3,003 3,290
Loan to an associate — Hong Kong mEtE R (BBECELER
Nang Yan College of Higher BRARB)ERK
Education Limited 17,883 —
20,886 3,290
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The loan to an associate (Hong Kong Nang Yan College
of Higher Education Limited) is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion
of the directors, the loan is considered as part of the
Group’s net investment in this associate.

The short term loan to an associate (Beacon
International College PTE. LTD.) included in the Group’s
current assets totalling RMB707,000 as at 31 December
2016 is repayable in full in March 2018 and bears

interest at 6% per annum.

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Particulars of
equity/ interest

Place of
incorporation/
establishment

17. RBERATNRE (F)

BUTHEAR (BB LERA
BAF) 2 ERAFER  £8 A1 %
EEEENR - EERE - HERM
RAREEREWED T2 REFE
t—#5 -

201612 A31H » [A Bt & A 7
(Beacon International College PTE.
LTD.) W EFRFAAREBENREEE -
AHAEARE707,0007T 20184
SHEEERE  HFME6RFE -

il NS 0E S Y N

Percentage
of ownership
interest
attributable
to the Group

held and business AEE
Name FrEaRAx,/ Eali A KIEGFTERE  Principal activities
e BRFE KU RER BamzBEDL FEXHK
Beacon International Ordinary Republic of 25.6% Commercial
College PTE. LTD.* shares Singapore schools offering
Beacon International T imA #hnigk FLANE higher education
College PTE. LTD.* programmes
RESSEHEEB Z
BEX-1N
Hong Kong Nang Membership Hong Kong 0%** Education institution
Yan College of Higher IB4=WNS) B providing higher
Education Limited* education
EARCELERARA A" RESSEHEZHE
s
* Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another * REBEBR KA BKREIREE 25—
member firm of the Ernst & Young global network IBA=PNGIE 327

*k

The Group’s subsidiary, Hong Kong College of Technology
and Business Limited (“Hong Kong Technology and
Business”), is one of the two members of Hong Kong Nang
Yan College of Higher Education Limited (*Hong Kong Nang
Yan”). Pursuant to the Articles of Association of Hong Kong
Nang Yan, no portion of the income and property of Hong
Kong Nang Yan shall be transferred directly or indirectly, by
way of dividend, bonus, or otherwise, to any member of it.
Hong Kong Technology and Business is entitled to appoint
2 members on the school management committee of Hong
Kong Nang Yan which represent 15% of the voting rights.

o AEEZHBAREEIRREAR
REA([FETEBR ) IBERCE
EERERAR(EERLC ] MEK
BRARz— - REEFBERC2AME
AR BRI ZBAREL &
AR ~ fEAL Sk H b 2 N B % s ]
BETHMEMKELRF - BELIHS
REERBEEECHNEBREELZES
REMAKE - HERNREREN15% °
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17.

18.

19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

REBEQFNIRE (H)

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 17.

The above investments are indirectly held by the
Company.

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

AR ERARRIEERTE °

TREGAAEE 2 EBMSLIFER

information of the Group’s associates that are not BB N F 2 BRI EER

individually material:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Share of the associates’ loss DIREE AR FEAEE
for the year (667) (928)
Share of the associates’ SIEEE AR 2 2 EIR G AR
total comprehensive income (667) (928)
Aggregate carrying amount REBREEARIMNIRE Z
of the Group’s investments FRE4AE
in the associates 20,886 3,290
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT 18. AHEERE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥FT
Unlisted equity investment, at cost FELETIRIEIRE - LKA 6,000 6,000

The above investment represents an equity investment
which was designated as an available-for-sale financial
asset and has no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2016, the unlisted equity
investment was stated at cost less impairment because
the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in
estimating fair value that the directors are of the opinion
that its fair value cannot be measured reliably. The
Group does not intend to dispose of the investment in & o
the near future.

EREEREEFAIHEESREE
HERETFRHE KRS B BRRERE -

R2015F 2016 F 12 A31H » 3
MR E TR AR B ESE -
HAAEEL6EMTE—THEASRE
HEtR st - BT AR LEES
RETEASZHEAFERENATF
B ASEEENEHALEEHER

INVENTORIES 19. &
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Raw materials AR 1,260 1,184
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES

20. EZEWKIE

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREF T

Trade receivables B 5 EWGIA 873 2,620
Impairment BIE — —
873 2,620

The Group’s students are required to pay tuition fees
and boarding fees in advance for the upcoming school
year, which normally commences in September. The
outstanding receivables represent amounts related to
students who have applied for the delayed payment of
tuition fees and boarding fees. There is no fixed term for
delayed payments. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly
by senior management. In view of the aforementioned
and the fact that the Group's trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified students, there is no
significant concentration of credit risk. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the transaction
date and net of provisions, is as follows:

AEENELEFAN T ESFHNEE
REBE BF—RRNAARK - &
R EWFIAEEEE R EEHR
BELEEENELEHENERE T
B BRI B E HR - AR E BB
FRAEHIR A EYRIE - AREEE
R - sReEEEENET NG
g AN EXF R ARENE 5 &
WORIRS R AN B AT 2 B84
BUABESXEERBRET - AEEL
BSHE 5 W IR & S 7 BHE TR
MR EMERER - B 5 RIGR
RRE -

BEREHEE 225 EHRNG
B E - B 5 E O ER ST
mF -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARETFT

Within 1 year —F R 211 657
11to 2 years —ZEMF 190 1,063
2 to 3 years WE=4F 265 741
Over 3 years =FE 207 159
873 2,620
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. H5EWEKE(E)
The movements in provision for impairment of trade B ORI IBERERENZBNT -

receivables are as follows:

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

At beginning of year F9) — 4,617

Impairment losses recognised (note 7) EMERIMEEE(H7E7) 1,841 1,934

Amount written off as uncollectible B A s AU B F0E (1,841) (6,551)

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to ERREE SR KRIBTIRE M BR

students that were in financial difficulties or were in B ARENFOBEMMEL - BFEH
default in payments and no receivable is expected to JE WK IB #S S RI H [E] ©

be recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that I FEE Bl sk 2 HB AR RRENE 5’
are not individually nor collectively considered to be WER KB RRE D ATIA T -

impaired is as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR¥TT

Less than 1 year past due BHER D —F 401 1,720
1 to 2 years past due BH—E M 265 741
2 to 3 years past due BHIRE = 207 159

873 2,620
Receivables that were past due but not impaired EEHERNERKRIERESZZEY
relate to a number of independent students who are in R BRRENBIS2EEE - RIES
temporary financial difficulties. Based on the individual VFHE EERAVENERZEE
assessment, the directors are of the opinion that no ERBEBENEEMELBERE -

provision for impairment is necessary given the various
efforts of these students to raise funds.
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B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

21,

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

21, BANRE  REREMERRIE

Note 2016 2015
{54 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T AR®ET T
Prepaid expenses AR 2,252 1,800
Prepaid land lease AT LA E IR (BVER)
payments (current
portion) 14 2,195 1,272
Advance to staff 2B TFHIAE 1,259 1,756
Advance to third parties B = FIE 2,960 2,093
Loan to a third party* EFE=ZFER" 30,000 30,000
Interest receivables U FI B 417 300
Listing expenses X 3,920 —
Other receivables H b R UL FRIE 3,507 2,708
46,510 39,929
Less: Impairment of B e A MR
deposits and other FIERE
receivables (736) (520)
45,774 39,409

The loan to a third party bears interest at 10% per annum
and is repayable in full in August 2017 with a guarantee
provided by another third party.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. Long
ageing balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the fact that the Group's
deposits and other receivables relate to a large number
of diversified counterparties, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over
its deposits and other receivable balances. Other
receivables are non-interest-bearing. The movements
in the provision for impairment of deposits and other
receivables are as follows:

© RBTE - IHERRFRE10%E
B R2017F8ABHIERE  UHS
—HE=TREER -

7N 5% [ 5 B8 e 5 S ELOR S R WK
HERBRES  WREEERR - i
RERNERBESREEEEHE
B o ERAKE RS K E AR UK
B R ABREAMDBBEHFT - &
TEEBAEERMBES - AEEILE
SERE M E AW RIR SR AT
A ma b ERIBAR - HibRE
RIARF R o RE R H MBI
EMEEZSMT

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARBTT

At beginning of year F9] 520 6,376
Impairment losses recognised EHRBEREE (M7)

(note 7) 435 —

Amount written off as uncollectible B 38 A A IR B ROR (219) (5,856)

736 520
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21,

22,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

The individually impaired other receivables relate to
counterparties that were in financial difficulties or were
in default in payments and no receivable is expected to
be recovered.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

21, BAMARE  REREMERTE(E)

118 1) A {1 ) L At & W R IR T L B B 7S
WEESRBENROE F oML AR
HAFE MR IR S AT Y] o

22, WHHERE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT
Wealth management products FRITREIBMER -
issued by licensed banks, /NS I

at fair value

143,182 522,096

During the year, the gain in respect of the Group’s
available-for-sale investments recognised in other
comprehensive income amounted to RMB182,000
(2015: RMB5,426,000), and RMB5,426,000 (2015:
RMB6,757,000) was reclassified from other
comprehensive income to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

RER AEBEEM2E K
PREIATEIELRENRT A A
R 182,000 T(20154F : A R ¥
5,426,0007T ) & A R # 5,426,000 7T
(20154 : AR#6,757,0007T) * /5
BEMEEKRSETSOEEEZE 2016
F12A31BIEFEMERT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND INVESTMENT

RERBITEBURRERK

DEPOSITS
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Cash and bank balances e RIRTTEEH 602,322 352,218
Investment deposits with licensed A B AR R 1T Y
banks in Mainland China, WEFI - RN
at amortised cost 362,600 121,230
Cash and cash equivalents HeMReEEYD 964,922 473,448
Cash and bank balances and DTHERFAENRESRIENT
investment deposits HEBRRRERFN
denominated in:
- RMB — AR% 944,885 448,329
- HK dollars (HK$) — BT 194 2,360
- US dollars (US$) — XTT 19,843 22,759

Investment deposits as at 31 December 2016
represented investments in wealth management
products purchased from licensed banks in Mainland
China, with an aggregate amount of RMB362,600,000
(2015: RMB121,230,000). The investment deposits
were classified by the Group as loans and receivables
and measured at amortised cost. The principals of the
investment deposits were guaranteed by the licensed
banks in Mainland China. The investment deposits
bore fixed interest return rates in the range of 2.40% to
5.05% per annum.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s cash and bank
balances and investment deposits denominated in RMB
amounted to RMB944,885,000 (2015: RMB448,329,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under the PRC Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

MR2016F 12 A31H MK E F R I8
AR AMIFERTEEMNENE
M BeEE A AR 362600,0007T
(20154 : AR ¥ 121,230,0007T) °
AEBBREGTRDEAERKER
FIE - WIRESEKAFE - REGFK
E’mémmmﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ% &%‘ﬁ
HETLE®R  SFEMFBRHRE

?2.40%15.05%

R20165F12A31H A& B H I
S RIBRITEBRIEETRAARKE
8 A A K #944,8850007c(2015
F 0 AR 448,329,00070) - AR
T EBRABRAEMER - Am - B
B EE AR MBI IMNE S I IEH) &
(HETE - SENRNESERTE) A%
EEATABERERITHARERL
BAEEMEEETINERET -
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23.

24,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND INVESTMENT
DEPOSITS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
imposed by the relevant PRC government authorities
or the terms and conditions set out in the relevant
government grant agreements, proceeds from
government grants are required to be deposited into
designated bank accounts and restricted to be used in
the relevant projects. As at 31 December 2016, such
balances were RMB87,456,000 (2015: RMB91,859,000).

DEFERRED REVENUE

23.

24.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

RERBITEBURRETFK(E)

FRRBITHRSRE B RITERA
REFBERREANE - RITHEBRTITF
I HRIE DRk M AE B AVIRTT -

RBEHEETFRBNE RERNEBE
BERN BRI H S HREMHIK
G BRSNS B REATR
RIETERITRF YR EEFBEEF
2016512 A31H @ &rA A
R 87,456,000 L(20154F : AR
91,859,0007T) °

R AE W 5

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTTT

Tuition fees 25 237,072 225,523
Boarding fees FEE 26,091 20,948
263,163 246,471

The students are entitled to the refund of payments
relation to the proportionate service not yet provided.

n

B4 B P B R IE f AR 75 &Y
MERAFA
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

166

25.

26.

27.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25.

HitENRERESER

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTT
Accrued bonuses and other JESTIEAL R B Ath {E B 12 7
employee benefits 19,522 12,039
Payables for catering services JE A& SRR 76 3KIB 2,221 2,927
Payables for purchase of property, WEVE - BEL&E
plant and equipment B FE < ;R IB 30,321 14,416
Payables for management fee ERBREMNHKIE 12,246 12,210
Miscellaneous expenses received R B 22 A O TR 7 S (B R (1))
from students (note (i)) 22,277 20,304
Other tax payable H b e HIR 2,771 7,094
Payables for listing expenses R ENRIE 6,135 —
Other payables H fth JE T I8 15,236 16,455
110,729 85,445

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and repayable
on demand.

Note (i):  The amount represents the miscellaneous expenses

received from students which will be paid out on
behalf of students.

LOANS FROM THE ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

Loans from the ultimate holding company are
unsecured, bear interest at 2% per annum and are
repayable in full in March and June 2017.

LOANS FROM RELATED PARTIES

Loans from related parties represent amounts borrowed
from other subsidiaries of the ultimate holding company.
Loans from related parties are unsecured, bear interest
at 2% per annum and are repayable in full in June and
July 2017.

26.

27.

HiENFIRARE - WIREREE -

MaEG) - SRR/WHRBEMNMIEFN 8

REEZAS -

REZLEZERATNER

REAFEER AN ERERBIZE
FE2%ET B EHR2017F3 8 &6
AEEEE -

REBETHER

REBEFNEREB RLIERAA
Hil B AR ERHFIE - KRB BE
FHERERFIEFEFNE2%E B
JERR 20176 AR7 ABHEE -
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28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

DEFERRED INCOME

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

28. EIEUWA

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AREF T

Government grants BBy
At beginning of year F) 121,920 66,230
Grants received B2 Ui Bh 57,270 64,317
Charged to profit or loss (note 7) T AEZE(FIET) (39,687) (8,627)
At end of year FR 139,503 121,920
Current B HA 7,488 5,195
Non-current JERNHA 132,015 116,725
139,503 121,920

These government grants are related to the subsidies
received from the local government for the purpose of
compensating the operating expenses arising from the
Group’s schools’ teaching activities and expenditures
on teaching facilities. Upon completion of the operating
activities and the related projects, the grants related
to the expense items would be recognised as other
income directly in profit or loss and the grants related
to an asset would be released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset.

%5 MU B & BRI B E U O
BER ARNMEAKESRHEE
FMELNKLERX RBBEREMH
X BREERHNEBIERTRIE
HAXAERENEDSEERNE
mERREMBBA > MEEERBHN
e REABEEMNTAR A ERF
HA B A f82s o
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. WA
Shares V.87
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR®ETF T
Authorised: ERE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares R2016F 12 A31 H
of US$0.00001 each as at #95,000,000,000 A% &%
31 December 2016 (2015: {2 .0.00001 2T
50,000,000 ordinary shares iR (20154F -
of US$0.001 each) 50,000,000 A%
A% E{E0.001 FETTH)
TiEAR) 403 403
Issued and fully paid: ERITRBERMK
2,589,451,200 ordinary shares MR2016F12 A 31 H
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: f)2,589,451,200 %
26,867,377 ordinary shares) LR (2015 4 -
26,867,377 IR E#EAR) 209 217
A summary of movements in the Company’s share RAFIRAESHHENT -
capital is as follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T
At beginning of year F9] 217 375
Shares repurchased (note (i)) BB (KTEE (1) (8) (158)
At end of year FR 209 217

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group
repurchased the Company’s shares of 19,647,365 issued to
previous investors through the Company and a wholly-owned
subsidiary for a total consideration of US$115,830,000
(approximately RMB738,822,000). The repurchased shares
were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2015
and the total amount paid for the repurchase of the shares
of RMB738,822,000 has been charged to share capital,
capital reserve and retained profits of the Group.

168

HE2015F 12 A31 HILFE - AEE
BRANR N —EE2EN B AR A
AR AT E & 1TH 19,647,365 A%
B {7 - #8A(E A 115,830,000 T(4)
AR #738,822,0007T) » AT HE | A% {0
DREE2015F12A31B IEFER
HEEREERMIMNASEARE
738,822,000 CE EAEEZKRA - &
ANGERE RAR B HF R kR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
repurchased the Company’s shares of 972,865 issued
to previous investors through a wholly-owned subsidiary
for a total consideration of US$8,906,000 (approximately
RMB59,056,000). The repurchased shares were cancelled
during the year ended 31 December 2016 and the
total amount paid for the repurchase of the shares of
RMB59,056,000 has been charged to share capital and
retained profits of the Group.

30. RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for each of the year are
presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 95 to 96 of this report.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents
the capital contribution premium from its then
shareholders.

Statutory reserve

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland China shall
make appropriations from after-tax profit to non-
distributable reserve funds as determined by
the boards of directors of the relevant PRC
subsidiaries. These reserves include (i) the general
reserve of the limited liability companies and (ii)
the development fund of schools.

1) In accordance with the Company Law of
the PRC, certain subsidiaries of the Group
which are domestic enterprises are required
to allocate 10% of their profit after tax, as
determined in accordance with the relevant
PRC accounting standards, to their respective
statutory surplus reserves until the reserves
reach 50% of their respective registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out
in the Company Law of the PRC, part of the
statutory surplus reserve may be converted to
registered capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less
than 25% of the registered capital.

29.

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

IR (78)

K17 (%)

30. f##

(a)

(b)

(c)

H Z2016F12A31H IF F - &
EEEB—HMEEWBRARBEREAX
A AEIA AT & & 1T R 972,865 A% %
% 4 R {8 58,906,000 JT(#) A
R #59,056,0007T) - FTEER K H E
REZE2016F 12 A31HIEFE R
EEREBEBRH I FHESBARE
59,056,000 7T & & A & B 2 f% A& & &
Ea ARk -

rEHE

AR EFISHEFEICHN
AR EFHRES -

B

AEBHNERFRASEERNK
REVTEGE

EE#HE

REBEFBEMERAR  ARFTE
AN EBARAREBERS
EER TR BRI ® M ERE
PADRFEES - ZFFHEEE
BOBREERA —REHEK
(i BMBEREE -

1) BE(PFEARZLFBERAR]
EY AEBETHEBAR
BREDLHE BAHBREAR
BB gt ERTEER
HERMOI0%EEE S
EMZEZERBREE EZE
FHEEISEEMEARD
50% ° ERFA(FEARHE
ME R EEYETE A TRl
BIBERT  BHETERAHS
RETEBRABIRA  BIR
ERFTEXRBEGRATR
REMERD 25% ©
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B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

30. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Statutory reserve (continued)

2)

According to the relevant PRC laws and
regulations, private schools that require
reasonable returns, they are required to
make appropriation to the development fund
not less than 25% of the net income of the
relevant schools as determined in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles
in the PRC. The development fund is for the
construction or maintenance of the school
facilities or procurement or upgrade of
educational equipment.

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2015: nil).

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

Group

The Group leases certain buildings under
operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for
periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

30. f#fE (&)
(c)

31. HREE

EE R (E)

2)

RIBERETBERER
FELEEBHRMBR
AkEPBE IR ERA
AEEFERATDR25%
BRziREig BRED
TRERZREEERR
M REEREHORBHL
THR o

MN2016F 12 A31H » NEBEMET
fAIEARKAEBE(2015F  #&) ©

32. BEHERY

ER LA

AEE
AEBEREBELZHERFHEAS
TET RAENEBABER—
FELF - HEGK—MENKA
EXxfEfRe  UREESHD
NEMAERS

(a)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 32. EEHEERHGR)
(a) As lessor (continued) (a) 1ERBLHHEA(E)
Group (continued) AEE(E)
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future MR2016F 12 A31H » &N &
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable RIR MR FT IR T % B B35 3
operating leases with its tenants falling due as B 71 A 38 45 & T B U A R 2R
follows: SERSLELT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBTT
Within one year —F RN 1,567 554
In the second to fifth years, F_EFRF
inclusive BEMFEELRN 599 557
2,166 1,111
(b) As lessee (b) EREAHEA
Group AEE
The Group leases certain of its buildings under AEERBEEHELHERE
operating lease arrangements. Leases for TEF BEFOVBERBE
buildings were negotiated for initial terms within B — F A R2016F 12 A 31
one year. At 31 December 2016, the Group had B REBEREN T BRI
total future minimum lease payments under non- B AT BUE S L E BT AR 2R
cancellable operating leases falling due as follows: HEESBEAT -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T NSRRI

Within one year —FA 536 182

171

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 &g



¢

172

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

33. COMMITMENTS 33.

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 32(b) above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

IR

M EXHsE32(b)FTsfil & EHE
AYEIN  KEERBEHERHE R
AEENT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT
Contracted, but not provided for: EHESEES: T B

Equipment Biai] 6,121 5,129
Buildings BgF 7,248 111

Loans committed to an associate BRSNS
BER 26,877 —
40,246 5,240

At the end of the reporting period the Group did
not have significant capital commitments that are
authorised but not contracted for (2015: nil).

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34.

(a) Name and relationship of related parties

Name

e

Honest Cheer Investments Limited

B EBR A A

UCMG Management Limited

e SN

Yangguang Healthcare Group Company Limited

(B BREEEGRAR

Yangguang Healthcare Education Company Limited

GHREEHEBRAT]

Yangguang Healthcare Education (Hong Kong)
Company Limited

GREEHE (BB)ARAH

Yangguang Healthcare Company Limited

Bt EEARAA

Yangguang Healthcare (Hong Kong) Company Limited

BB E(EE)ERAR

Beacon International College PTE. LTD.

Beacon International College PTE. LTD.

RBEHR > AEBELESKE RHE
BARFTREARALE (20155 « &) -

BEIRS

(a) BBEFHEBREEF
Relationship

2RES

the ultimate holding company
B A A

fellow subsidiary
CES by NG

fellow subsidiary
EEXI=YNG]

fellow subsidiary
SES by NG

fellow subsidiary

CES by YNG]
fellow subsidiary
EEXi1=YNG]
fellow subsidiary
SES by NG
associate
/N
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. BEFRS(H)

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (b) FBRIREIE K 7 B fit i 5 Fr 08 B
XS FEBEFAHEBES
BITUTXS :

the financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

2015
RMB’000
ARBTFT
Loans from: RETIHEFWER :
Honest Cheer Investments W EER AT
Limited (i) — 114,781
UCMG Management Limited HBtEBREHRE QAR (i) 8,639 —
Yangguang Healthcare Group F5)tEEEE AR AT
Company Limited (iii) — 455
Yangguang Healthcare BHrEREREER AR
Education Company
Limited (iif) — 455
Yangguang Healthcare [BhBEHE (BH)
Education (Hong Kong) BRAR]
Company Limited (iii) — 455
Yangguang Healthcare BHEERRAR
Company Limited (iii) — 2,726
Yangguang Healthcare B EE(EE)
(Hong Kong) Company BRAT]
Limited (iif) — 455
8,639 119,327
Interest expense to: RETHEFWER :
Honest Cheer Investments W ERR AT
Limited (i) 2,337 302
UCMG Management Limited BtEBEER AR (ii) 166 —
Yangguang Healthcare Group Bt BEEE AR A )
Company Limited (iii) 9 —
Yangguang Healthcare BHrEREHEER AR
Education Company
Limited (iii) 9 —
Yangguang Healthcare BRERERAE (BHE)
Education (Hong Kong) BRAR]
Company Limited (iii) 9 —
Yangguang Healthcare BHEERRAR
Company Limited (iii) 56 3
Yangguang Healthcare Bt E®E(EE)
(Hong Kong) Company BRAR]
Limited (iif) 9 —
2,595 305
Loan to: ATIEFER :
Beacon International College Beacon International
PTE. LTD. College PTE. LTD. (iv) 676 —
Interest income from: RETHEFFEWA :
Beacon International College Beacon International
PTE. LTD. College PTE. LTD. (iv) 13 —
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B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in the financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during
the year (continued):

(1)

(iif)

(iv)

In 2015, the Group borrowed loans from
Honest Cheer Investments Limited with an
amount of RMB45,455,000 which bore interest
at 2% per annum and were repayable in full
in March 2017, and loans with an amount of
RMB69,326,000 which bore interest at 2%
per annum and were repayable in full in June
2017.

In 2016, the Group borrowed loans from
UCMG Management Limited with an amount
of RMB8,639,000 which bore interest at 2%
per annum and were repayable in full in July
2017.

In 2015, the Group borrowed loans from
Yangguang Healthcare Group Company
Limited, Yangguang Healthcare Education
Company Limited, Yangguang Healthcare
Education (Hong Kong) Company Limited,
Yangguang Healthcare Company Limited
and Yangguang Healthcare (Hong
Kong) Company Limited with amounts of
RMB455,000, RMB455,000, RMB455,000,
RMB2,726,000 and RMB455,000, respectively,
which bore interest at 2% per annum and
were repayable in full in June 2017.

The interest income of RMB13,000 in 2016
from Beacon International College PTE. LTD.
arose from the loan to Beacon International
College PTE. LTD. of RMB676,000.

34. BELXRZ(H)

BR IR B 75 3 7 B b 416 T T A 4 Y
X FEBEF R
ETETU IS () -

(b)

(i)

(if)

(iif)

(iv)

20154 - KN & B & 8
BRI EBERARIHNER
A AN R ¥ 45,455,000 7T
BENER2%E B RAR
2017FE3ABEEER U
M EZRAR#69,326,000
TC RFF R 2% 5 B M A
2017 % 6 ABEER -

2016 - REEE B B
FEERBEAERATNERA
AR#E8,639,0007T * 1R4E
A E2%at B K AR 2017
F7ABHEE -

R2015%F » XN £ B (&
BEGEXEEREEBAERA
A-BrXEEHEAR
nEl-EBRXEEHE(H
BIBR AR BGXEE
ERRAAIEGXEEGE
B)ERRAAINE RS B
A AN R ¥4550007T *
A B #4550007C « A
R #4550007T - A E
#2,726,0007C K A R #&
455,0007C * 9 ¥ F F &
2%t B MER 20176 A
EBHIEE -

M 2016 F ' Beacon
International College PTE.
LTD. &8 F B A A B %
13,000 72K B 72 [A] Beacon
International College
PTE. LTD.BUE XK A R
676,0007T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) ‘
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. BEHRS(H)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EEEFELRIAKEEZE
As disclosed in the consolidated statement of WANER & WA R ABE - 7
financial position, the Group had outstanding WERR  ANEERFREMNEER
balances due to related parties at the end of the RIAREBELH -
reporting period.
Current portion of loans from the ultimate holding KB REER AR E KB BIHAEE
company: o
2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTFT
Honest Cheer Investments Limited FIEIREBR A A 125,413 —
Non-current portion of loans from the ultimate *RERELIERA G ERAIERNEIES -
holding company:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREBTFT
Honest Cheer Investments Limited # 1R EBR A7 — 115,095
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties

(continued)

Current portion of loans from related parties:

34. BEIXRZ(E)

2016

RMB’000
AR®T

(c) ZEBIET B9K EEZER ()

KERET EROERAELS

2015
RMB’'000
ARBTIT

UCMG Management Limited BRI AR A A 9,114 —
Yangguang Healthcare Group (EhEREEER AT

Company Limited 496 —
Yangguang Healthcare Education Bt EEHBE AR AR

Company Limited 496 —
Yangguang Healthcare Education BGXEEHE (F5)GRA A

(Hong Kong) Company Limited 496 —
Yangguang Healthcare Company [GXEEFR A A

Limited 2,975 —
Yangguang Healthcare [EHrEBE(EE)BRAR

(Hong Kong) Company Limited 496 —

14,073 —

Non-current portion of loans from related parties:

KERETEROIEHE D

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTFT
UCMG Management Limited 5t ER IR B PR A 7 — —
Yangguang Healthcare Group (BhBEREEGRAR
Company Limited — 455
Yangguang Healthcare Education B EBEHBEE AR
Company Limited — 455
Yangguang Healthcare Education X EBEHE (FHE)
(Hong Kong) Company Limited BRAT] — 455
Yangguang Healthcare Company [ZXE&EAR A A
Limited — 2,730
Yangguang Healthcare [ E(FB)BRAA
(Hong Kong) Company Limited — 455
— 4,550
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34.

(c)

(d)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Outstanding balances with related parties
(continued)

Current portion of loans to related parties:

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

BB X5 (&)
(c) EEBETHIAEER L ()

5 B B MEN S

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T ARBTIT

Beacon International College Beacon International
PTE. LTD. College PTE. LTD.

707 —

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

(d) FEEFTEEEASHIF B -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T NS R

Salaries, allowances and benefits ¥4 - 2B REWHZ

in kind 3,587 3,704
Discretionary bonuses B 15 1 TEAT 777 —
Pension scheme contributions IRKEET 2R 24 26

4,388 3,730

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.

EEMERE - PFBRNYH
HARMIEES
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. ERITAESHE
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEHR SEeRTANEEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting ORI

period are as follows:

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 149,182 528,096
Financial assets — loans and receivables THEE-EXNRENKTE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF T
Trade receivables B 5 EWGIA 873 2,620
Financial assets included in AN EZE R
prepayments, deposits and HAth FE R IR HY
other receivables ETREE 33,188 32,488
Investment deposits BTN 362,600 121,230
Loan to an associate Bl NCIN= £ 707 —
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITES 602,322 352,218
999,690 508,556
Financial liabilities at amortised cost THEE  ZHEBERA

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T NS R

Financial liabilities included in other ST AE b B FRIE K&

payables and accruals EETRIERN 2R BE 88,436 66,312

Loans from the ultimate holding KB &EER AR
company- current K E R — BNER 125,413 —

Loans from the ultimate holding PN=E3 32 /NGl
company- non-current BBk — FERNER — 115,095
Loans from related parties- current REBEERER—AE 14,073 —
Loans from related parties- non-current & B B8:&E 5 &5 — JERNEA — 4,550
227,922 185,957
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36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

EMTENAFERAFEER

RARMEE  AEESRTA(REE
RAFESEEEERIN MREER
DFEMT

2016 2016
Carrying
amounts  Fair values
IRMEE ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR® T
Wealth management products 1B HIE & 143,182 143,182
2015 2015
Carrying
amounts Fair values
FREE ~EE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT
Wealth management products 201 EE i 522,096 522,096
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash BIEERD Trﬁfﬁ/i*&fﬁﬂ EER - RE
and bank balances, investment deposits, a loan to an T A %J\E d’)\iﬁﬁﬁ\
associate, financial assets included in prepayments, ?Eé&ﬁﬁﬂﬁgﬂﬁl IEE’]irﬁéF
deposits and other receivables, trade receivables, SEWFHIE - st AHMERF IE&F
financial liabilities included in other payables and HZEMSRMEAE  REBRTRA
accruals, loans from the ultimate holding company and ANERARKRE F%@?‘iﬂ’]%mﬁ’]’&
loans from related parties approximate to their carrying FE - BEREEEES  TEL2ERN
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of ZETERBANRE -
these instruments.
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities THMEERAE E’J FELABRERZS
are included at the amount at which the instrument 7 GERENBEREE)BARHHZ
could be exchanged in a current transaction between TEMAR %’i\ )\ﬁE o LMTNHZER

willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale investments
in banks’ wealth management products have been
estimated using a discounted cash flow valuation
model based on assumptions that are not supported
by observable market prices or rates. The valuation
requires the directors to make estimates about the
expected future cash flows including expected future
interest return on maturity of the wealth management
products. The directors believe that the estimated fair
values resulting from the valuation technique, which
are recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position, and the related changes in fair values, which
are recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that they were the most appropriate
values at the end of the reporting period.

R A EEE RSN EE -

SRITIEBEMPIE LA E %3
MAFEEFBMARSREEER
BREE LIRS B M E kX
i HEBEREEMFTEERK
(B IEIE B E B B ?EHH%PK
El13R) - EEMEEHEHES HjE!’ﬂ
”ASFTE(EC%?GHM%#R#&EEQJ)\EE
EAFEMEEZ S (REMAEEKE
KPARBAE  WARSHRER]
AHE -

B 32 % B
oF 2 3
vﬂmWﬁ%m

N\

Fﬁtf
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. TRITAMNAFERLIFEER(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs TRAEGRIAFENRRERRNE
to the valuation of financial instruments together with ATABR2H N E(LFRE DT
a quantitative sensitivity analysis at the end of the BME

reporting period:

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input  Range value to the input
fHER A EXTATERE2Y ) ATEH2HUNGRE
Unlisted wealth management Discounted Interest return rate  2.40% to 4.25% 0.5%
products cash flow FEEHRE (2015: 2.20% increase/(decrease) in
EETRITIEMER method t0 5.50%) interest return rate would
BRI ERE 2.40% 2 4.25%  result in increase/
(2015 : (decrease) in fair value
2.20% % by RMB29,000 (2015:
5.50%) RMB572,000).
FISEEHE EH
(F%)0.5% 1% &5
AFEEI/ (D)
AEK# 29,0007
(20154 :

AR®572,0007T °

Fair value hierarchy RNFEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value TREPAER SR T ENRAFET
measurement hierarchy of the Group’'s financial EER

instruments:

Assets measured at fair value BN FEGTENEE

As at 31 December 2016 R 20164F 12 A 31 H

Fair value measurement using
AT EFRER
Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total

RIERB™ S EXH EARAT
B R (E BER2H BER2Y #st
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(F—#&) (F=#%) (B=#)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T AR®BT T ARBTRT

Wealth management
products A E M — — 143,182 143,182
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
BRI EE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

36. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 36. @RMIANAFERATERER(E)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) X FEER ()
Assets measured at fair value (continued) BN FEFAENEE (&)
As at 31 December 2015 2015612 A31H

Wealth management
products BHEm — — 522,096 522,096

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value RFER > F—HEF-_HF 2B FEL
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no &E#EE NEEFFTFEEEF=-HNIQ

transfers into or out of Level 3. SRR
The Group did not have any financial liability measured R#MEHKR  AEBWEZ QA FEFEN
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. FHemAasE -
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
cash and bank balances, investment deposits and
available-for-sale investments. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables, other receivables, other payables and
accruals, loans from the ultimate holding company and
loans from related parties, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’'s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

All of the Group’s turnover and substantially all of the
Group’s operating expenses are denominated in RMB,
which is not a freely convertible currency. The PRC
Government imposes controls on the convertibility of
RMB into foreign currencies and, in certain cases,
the remittance of currency out of Mainland China.
Shortages in the availability of foreign currencies may
restrict the ability of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries to
remit sufficient foreign currencies to pay dividends or
other amounts to the Group.

37.

SRRABEEBREREXE

AEENTIEEMTABRRS LR
TTHERR ~ B AT i B
AEBEZRAERRNEEELNEM
TREERBE WEZHEREFAE -
Hofth FEUCRROR B R OB K AT
B REREEBRABNER MK
BREETTHER

AEESRMTAMEENEIEZRARS
ShE R - EERER KREE SR
2 BEEREHNIBEEESABAE
REBR - BRABRROMELT

S B

AEEE2HREXBRET 22 EH
X AREE MARBILIEA
BREABEE - PEBFZEHIARS
SN A - WHER TIE R TS
EWELBE - SMNEERA R BIA
£ B h BB A A E L R SN R AR
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37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax
and equity.

Effect on profit before tax

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

37. TRIEREEEREREE(H)

S m R ()

TERBIIR RS MK - EHA A
TRRZRHTEOERT - AL
OB AT R R R PR T A B
BB M R -

Increase in the US$ rate by 3% FE TR EIE N 3%
Decrease in the US$ rate by 3% ETLEEXETE 3%

ESp IR0y
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
13,121 10,487
(13,121) (10,487)

Effect on equity (including effect on profit before tax)

BRI & (BRGH A IR EE)

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETFT

Increase in the US$ rate by 3% EITEEIE 3% (16,261) (3,431)

Decrease in the US$ rate by 3% ETTEERTEI% 16,261 3,431
Credit risk EEEE

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets, which
comprise bank balances, investment deposits,
available-for-sale investments, trade receivables,
deposits and other receivables and a loan to an
associate, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

AEBeRMEE(BRRITESR K
BER - AHEERE  BEHEEK
H - R MEAD IR A K AR
AEFONEERBRKEHFHEL -
ReEREENZFTANKEE -
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B RRMEE ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Since the Group transacts mainly with recognised and
creditworthy third parties including creditworthy banks,
there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer/counterparty
and by geographical region. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
internally generated cash flows from operations and
other borrowings. The Group regularly reviews its
major funding positions to ensure that it has adequate
financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group’'s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37.

EREBEEREREE(H)

EEmEE(E)

ARASEETZRER A REERY
8 = E(E%TDE.E%E’JEET?)Q
% WAL TR E M - A&

BREF/HFRHREREFEE
Rk AEBARLESKEREER
Y

o

REBELEE

AEENERRBBERACENINE
E2REREREMERERESH
BHRERSEEEZRHNTE - XEE
R E2E NN AERE BB
MBERBITHBEE -

AEEEMABNHRERRERELH
AR RO BB RAT

As at 31 December 2016

R2016512431A
3to
Less than CEERGET
On demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
ZETEB
RERBEE TEB=fA +=f8A —-Z5f @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE ARBTrn AR%TR ARBTrn AR%T:
Financial liabilities AT AH e £
included in other FIB R EET
payables and accruals ERER
afE 88,436 — — — 88,436
Loans from the ultimate 7§ E S Sl
holding company NAEER — — 126,291 — 126,291
Loans from related parties 7€ (& B#3&# 77
BWE R — — 14,211 — 14,211
88,436 — 140,502 — 228,938
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 37.

POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

MB KM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

EHEREEBERBE(H)

mEBELEE ()

As at 31 December 2015
201512 A31H

Less than

On demand 3 months
REKEEE THA={A
RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR

3to

less than

12 months
ZETHB 1tob years Total
+Z{@A —EhF @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT ARETR

Financial liabilities ATARMER
included in other FEREE
payables and accruals ~ FHEEARE 66,312 — — — 66,312
Loans from the ultimate B &K
holding company ARIER — — — 118,219 118,219
Loans from related parties REEELH)
EXN — — — 4,682 4,682
66,312 — — 122,901 189,213
Capital management BEXEE

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base
so as to maintain creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of business.

The directors review the capital structure on a
continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through raising
new debts as well as redemption of existing debts. The
Group’s overall strategy remained unchanged during
the reporting period.

AEBOBRBERREE AR
IRFFEEALETEOEL - FEE
RARREBER

E=THRNEARE  ZERELK
AREZFEEAHBANRR - RIEE
FEMEBREZ  AKESEEERN
BELRERNRAEHFOABEEAR
B AREMEBRENRE R E
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-asset ratio
which is total liabilities divided by total assets. Capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the parent.
The debt-to-asset ratios as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

37. TRIAREEEEREE(H)

EAXAEE (H)

AEERMEERGRENES B
EREXREAGRERNAEERE -
BAREBAREE ARERE - RR
SHRNEERBLLRWT

Total liabilities BEEE
Total assets BEBE
Debt-to-asset ratios BEAEX

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT
652,958 590,527
2,223,870 2,009,468
29% 29%

The Group did not have any unutilised banking facilities
at the end of the year.

RER NEBY EEAHERRITE

o

Minsheng Education Group Company Limited RE#HBEFFRA A



COMPANY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M F M ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 BILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. ARAFZHBMRRE

Information about the statement of financial position of R#EHAEK » N R Bk K 2 E R
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as  NFT/R :

follows:
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WEARNEE 789 789
Total non-current assets MBI EELE 789 789
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Due from subsidiaries =N 142,304 125,091
Prepayments, deposits and TERTHK - e REHA
other receivables Q] 4,041 —
Cash and bank balances Be MIRITES 173 3,255
Total current assets MEEERE 146,518 128,346
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
Other payables and accruals M e RRIB R FE AT R 8,597 772
Loans from the ultimate B & E R A REA
holding company HER 38,954 —
Due to subsidiaries FEAT I B A B 3KIR 21,176 6,741
Total current liabilities R BaEERE 68,727 7,513
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 77,791 120,833
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAEE
LIABILITIES 78,580 121,622
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *kRBEE
Loans from the ultimate B R A FIE ARE R
holding company — 35,748
Due to a subsidiary JETH B A R FRIR 92,700 88,167
Total non-current liabilities BB EETE 92,700 123,915
Net liabilities mEN B ERE (14,120) (2,293)
DEFICIENCY IN ASSETS BERBH
Share capital [N 209 217
Reserves ] (14,329) (2,510)
Total deficiency in assets BEERA (14,120) (2,293)
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‘ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
MM ()

Year ended 31 December 2016
HZE2016F 12 A1 HILFE

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 38. ARTZHMBEAARRNE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note: P &E
A summary of the Company'’s reserves is as follows: RABREECEN TR
Capital Accumulated Exchange Total
reserve losses fluctuation reserves
R #E RitEE EIREREE fRIEHARE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T AR®T T
At 1 January 2015 201551818 508,836 (16,563) (102,890) 389,383
Loss for the year FEEE — (302) — (302)

Other comprehensive income FREMEEUE :
for the year:

Exchange differences on BRECZERZR
translation — — 55,839 55,839

Total comprehensive income  FE 2 MmN S A58

for the year — (302) 55,839 55,537
Repurchase of issued fE O 2 BT g mARAR D

ordinary shares (508,836) (8,747) 45,732 (471,851)
Difference arising from a loan BHB QR &R MK

from a subsidiary with an Z o HAERER

interest rate lower than the R RIES

market interest rate — 24,421 — 24,421
At 31 December 2015 and R2015F 124318 K

1 January 2016 201641 A1H — (1,191) (1,319) (2,510)
Loss for the year FEER — (11,003) — (11,003)

Other comprehensive loss FREMEEKA :
for the year:

Exchange differences MEIERZ5
on translation — — (824) (824)
Total comprehensive loss for  FE 2 mE K E 1A%
the year — (11,003) (824) (11,827)
Repurchase of issued fERIE T EBmRR G,
ordinary shares — 6 2 8
At 31 December 2016 M20165F12831H — (12,188) (2,141) (14,329)
39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. REPEZEE
The shares of the Company were listed on the AARMDR2017F3 A22H B R
Stock Exchange on 22 March 2017, among which Fr ETH » " 1,000,000,0008% /%5
1,000,000,000 shares (subject to the over-allotment (G FHBERRENTE) ERARE
option) were issued to the public at a price of HK$1.38 17 GREKRAB1.388T °
per share.
40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 40. HEBIERE
The financial statements were approved and authorised EFEE2ER2017F4 148 #E R
for issue by the board of directors on 14 April 2017. T B mEk -
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